
NOTICE is hereby given that the 77th Annual General
Meeting of the members of  (CIN:
L15141UP1940PLC000946) will  be held at
Chaudhary Bhavan (Near Jain Mandir), E Block, Kavi
Nagar, Ghaziabad - 201 002 (U.P.) on the

of  at  to transact the
following businesses:

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial
Statements of the Company for the financial year
ended 31st March, 2018, together with the reports
of the Directors and Auditors thereon.

2. To declare Dividend on Equity Shares.

3. To appoint a Director in place of Shri Girish Narain
Mehra (DIN: 00059311), who retires by rotation
and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

4. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modifications, the following resolution as a 

:

“   pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 196, 197 and 203 read with Schedule V
of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) and such other approvals/sanctions
as may be necessary and as approved by the
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the
Board of Directors, the consent and approval of
the Company be and is hereby accorded to the
appointment of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj (DIN:
00026247) as Managing Director of the Company
for a period of 3 years with effect from November
05, 2017 on the remuneration and other terms &
conditions as set out in the Explanatory Statement
annexed hereto.

  pursuant to Section
196 and all other applicable provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013, the remuneration by way

of salary and perquisites as set out in the annexed
Explanatory Statement be paid as minimum
remuneration to Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj or such
minimum remuneration as permissible in Schedule
V of the Companies Act, 2013 notwithstanding
that in any financial year of the Company during his
tenure as Managing Director, the Company has
made no profits or profits are inadequate.

  the Board of
Directors/Nomination & Remuneration Committee
be and are hereby authorised to alter or vary the
terms of appointment of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj,
including relating to remuneration, as it may, at its
discretion, deem fit from time to time, so as not to
exceed the limits specified in Schedule V of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 (including any statutory
modification or re-enactment thereof, for the time
being in force) or any amendments made thereto.”

5. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without
modifications, the following resolution as a 

:

“  pursuant to the provisions of
Sections 4 and 13 and other applicable provisions,
if any, of Companies Act, 2013  read with
Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment
thereof for the time being in force), and subject to
registrations, approvals, consents, permissions
and sanctions, if any, required from the jurisdictional
Registrar of Companies or any other appropriate
authority/ies and subject to such terms, conditions,
amendments or modifications as may be required
or suggested by such appropriate authorities and
as may be agreed to or approved by the Board
of Directors of the Company, consent of the
members of the Company be and is hereby
accorded to alter, modify and revise the existing
set of Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the
Company as under:

(i) Adopting the number format for the clauses
of MOA as prescribed under Table A of
Schedule I of the Companies Act, 2013 i.e.
renumbering the clauses 1 - 5 as “I – V”.



(ii) Substituting the existing clause 2 with the new
clause II as under:

The Registered Office of the Company
will be situated in the State of 

”

(iii) Deleting the existing clause 3 and substituting
the same with the new clause III as under:

To carry on the business of manufacturing,
producing buying, selling, stocking, supplying,
exchanging, converting, altering, distributing,
importing, exporting, processing, packaging,
repacking all kinds of edible oils and fats
including but not limited to vegetable ghee,
vegetable oil, filtered refined & micro refined
vegetable oils, hydrogenated vegetable oil,
bakery shortening, margarine, oil cakes,
soaps, acid oil, chemicals, oleo chemicals,
cattle feed, oxygen, hydrogen or any other
gas and all other intermediate and bye
products of oils & fats of whatsoever nature
and description, all kinds of seeds and to
cultivate, grow, purchase or otherwise acquire
and sell and trade in seeds and other
oleageinous substances and products and to
crush and extract oil from oil-seeds and other
substances or products capable of being
conveniently carried on or otherwise directly
or indirectly calculated to enhance the value of
any of the Company’s property or rights for
the time being of the Company.

To carry on the business of manufacturing,
producing buying, selling, stocking, supplying,
exchange, converting, altering, distributing,
importing, exporting, processing, packaging,
repacking or otherwise handling or dealing
dairy milk and milk products, including flavoured
milk, milk beverages and concentrates, ice-
cream, ice cream mixes, dairy desserts, milk
shakes, milk powder, cheese,  yoghurt, curd,
baby foods, protein foods, sweets and other
dairy preparation of every kind, nature and
description, soya milk, flavoured soya milk
butter, soya milk products and preparations, ,

soya baby foods, extruded snacks, other
preparations of soya, soya cereals and lentils,
including flour and dal, soya tofu, soya paneer,
salad dressing and to promote the cultivation
of soyabean, to convert soyabean into oils
and its products by any process.

To carry on the business of development,
construction and operation of shopping malls,
multiplexes, retailing outlets, shopping
centres, residential/commercial townships,
group housing buildings/flats and other
construction/real estate activity individually or
in combination formats comprising flats,
buildings, shops, offices and/or units for
residential commercial, retail or shopping
purposes convention centres, recreation
centres, amusement parks, exhibition and/or
display platforms, arenas or spaces In
whatsoever forms, theatres, art galleries,
cafeterias,  restaurants, parking spaces etc. and
to arrange or give on rental, lease or on hire,
have a business conducting arrangement or
undertaking actual retailing activities or sell the
shops, off ices and/or units etc. to
manufacturers, trade bodies, traders, service
providers Including architects, engineering
consultancy firms, finance companies, banks
and/or any other persons or organizations/legal
entitles and render services for running such
shopping malls, complexes or departmental
stores as also conducting events either directly
or through event management companies,
providing services as event managers,
holding exhibitions, seminars, competitions,
conferences, movie festivals, theatre
showings, music and dance recitals, cultural
events and regional/national festivals, art
shows and other related events in the mall
complex for its promotion and to purchase,
lease, exchange or otherwise acquire land or
any interest or right connected with any land
with or without building.

To carry on the business of building, running
and managing hotels, motels, restaurants,
resorts, recreation centres, holiday camps,
amusement parks, guest houses, bed &
breakfast/home-stay lodging facilities,
banquets halls, restaurants, picnic spot,



canteens, caterers, cafes, taverns, pubs, bars,
beerhouses, refreshment rooms, clubs and
lodging or apartments, casinos, discotheques,
swimming pools, health clubs, baths, dressing
rooms, health centres, conference centres,
gymnastics, yoga centres, catering and
hospitality services, massage and beauty
parlours in and outside India and related
activities thereto.

To carry on the business of manufacturing,
producing, buying, selling stocking, supplying,
exchanging, converting, altering, distributing,
importing, exporting, processing, extruding,
canning, bottling, freezing, packing, preserving,
dehydrating, packing and repacking of fruits,
potatoes, potato chips, vegetable products,
cereal products, beatel leaf, pan masala,
nectars, jelly, pulp, beans, ketchups, jams,
desserts, chocolates, toffees, murabbas,
pickles, health foods, drinks,  drinking water,
aerated water, non-aerated mineral water,
artificial water drinks, soft drinks, concentrates,
squashes, sorbets, l iquors, soups,
beverages, juices, juice concentrates, synthetic
concentrates of every description, fats, snacks,
namkeens, fast foods, cooked or boiled or
fried foods, malted foods, weaning foods,
flour, bread & bakery products and
confectionary items.

To carry on the business of rendering business
advisory & consultancy services including
market intelligence & risk management
services, project feasibility studies and
services relating to business process
outsourcing, knowledge process outsourcing,
legal process outsourcing, medical
transcription, data processing/search/mining/
analysis and to establish, run & manage call
centers, back office & help-desks and to act
as management consultants, financial
consultants, HR consultants and to provide
consultancy and advisory services for all kinds
of credit syndication & fund raising from
overseas markets and bank & financial
services franchisees/outsourcing services.

To carry on the business as buyers, sellers,
import traders, export traders, importers,

exporters, distributors, agents, brokers,
stockists, commission agents and dealers of
all kinds of consumer, industrial or engineering
goods, commodities, products or material as
may be permissible under trade policy and
to act as a recognised trading house and/or
export house.

To promote any other company for the
purpose of acquiring all or any of the property
and liabilities of this Company or for any other
purpose, which may be directly or indirectly
calculated to benefit this Company.

To apply for, obtain,  purchase or otherwise
acquire and protect, prolong and renew any
patent rights, brevets, invention, processes,
trade secrets, scientific technical or other
assistance, manufacturing process, know-how
and other information, designs, patterns,
copy-rights trade-marks, licenses, concession
and like rights, or the benefits or the right of
use thereof, which may seem capable of
being used for, or in connection with any of
the purposes of the business of the company
on   payment of any  fee, royalty  or other
consideration and to use, exercise or develop
the same and manufacture or grant licenses in
respect thereof or otherwise deal with same.

To enter into partnership or any arrangements
or agreement with any governments or
authorities supreme, municipal, local or
otherwise, or any person or Company or any
of them for sharing profits, union of interests,
exchange of shares, joint ventures, reciprocal
concession or co-operation and engage in any
business which the Company is authorized
to carry on and to obtain from such
government, authority, person or company,
any rights, privileges, charters, contracts,
licenses and concessions which the company
may think it desirable to obtain and to enter
into restructuring or other arrangements of
mergers, demergers, take-overs,



amalgamations as may be beneficial or
desirable subject to statutory sanctions, if any,
required for giving effect to such schemes or
arrangements.

To subscribe for takeover or otherwise acquire
and hold shares, stocks, debentures or other
interests in or securities of any other firm,
company or companies having objects
altogether or in part similar to those of the
Company.

To invest otherwise than investment in
Company’s own shares and deal with the
moneys of the Company  in shares, stocks or
any other financial instruments not immediately
required in such manner as may from time to
time be expedient or be determined.

To invest money with or without security and
generally make advance of such sum or sums
of money upon or in respect of or for the
purchase of raw materials, goods, machinery,
stores or any other property, articles and
things required for the purpose of the
company with or without security and upon
such terms and subject to such conditions as
the company may deem expedient.

Subject to the applicable relevant legal
provisions and the directions issued by the
Reserve Bank of India, to receive money on
deposit or loan and borrow or raise money in
such manner as the company shall think fit and
in particular by the issue of debentures or
debenture stock( perpetual or otherwise) and
to secure the repayment of any money
borrowed by mortgage, charge or lien upon
all or any of the property  or asset of the
company  (both present  and future)  including
its uncalled capital, and also by a similar
mortgage, charge or lien to secure and
guarantee the performance by the company
of any obligation undertaken by the company
as the case may be provided that the
company  shall not  do any banking  business
within the meaning of  Banking Regulation
Act, 1949.

To mortgage, hypothecate, pledge all or any
of the property, whether movable or

immovable of any description whatsoever
and to sell, improve, manage, develop,
exchange, lease, mortgage, enfranchise,
dispose of turn to account or otherwise deal
with all or any part of the property and rights
of the Company.

To draw, make, accept, endorse, discount
execute, negotiate, assign cheques, drafts,
promissory notes, bill of exchange, hundies,
debentures, bonds, bills of lading, railway
receipts, warrants and all other negotiable or
transferable instruments.

To open an account or accounts with any
individual, firm or company or with any Bank
or Banks or Banker or shroffs and to withdraw
money from such account or accounts.

To pay out of the funds of the company all
costs, charges and expenses of and incidental
of the formation and registration of the
company, and any company promoted by
the company and also to pay all costs,
charges, impositions and expenses of and
incidental to the acquisition by the company
of the property or assets of and incidental to
accomplishment of all or any formalities which
the company may think necessary or proper
in connection with any of the aforesaid.

To pay for any property or rights acquired by
for any services rendered to the company
either by fully or partly paid up shares, with or
without preferred rights in respect of dividend
or payment of capital or otherwise or by any
securities and debentures which company has
power to issue or by grant of any rights or
options, or partly in one mode and partly in
another and generally on such terms as the
company may determine.

To promote from and register; and aid in the
promotion and registration of any company or
companies, subsidiary or otherwise for
purpose of acquiring all or any of the property,
rights and liabilities of the company and to
transfer to any such company and property of
the company and to be interested in or take
otherwise acquire, hold, sell or otherwise
dispose of shares, stocks, debentures and



other securities in or of any such company or
any other company for all or any of the objects
mentioned in this Memorandum and to
subsidize or otherwise assist any such
company and to undertake the management
and secretarial or other works, duties and
business of any company on such terms as
may be arranged.

To apply for aid in promoting and obtain any
charter, privilege concession license, authority
for enabling the company to carry any of its
objects into effect or extending any of the
powers of the company for effecting any
modification of the constitution of the company
or for any other purpose which may seem
expedient and to oppose any proceedings
or applications which may seem calculated
directly or indirectly to prejudice the interest of
the company.

To grant pensions, allowance, gratitudes and
bonus of existing or former employees and
officers  (including Directors of the company
or their dependents) or connections, and to
make payments towards insurance for any
such purposes and to establish, join and
support trust, fund or schemes (whether
contributory or non-contributory)  with a view
to provide persons  or all allowances  for any
persons or any other associations, Institution,
trusts, fund schemes, clubs and conveniences
calculated to benefit any such person.

Subjects to the applicable relevant legal
provisions, to make donations to such persons
either of cash or any other assets as may be
thought, directly or indirectly, conducive to any
of the Company’s objects  or otherwise
expedient  and to subscribe or contribute  or
otherwise assist  on guarantee  money for
charitable, scientific, religious benevolent,
national, public or other institutions or objects
and to establish and support or aid in the
establishment and support of associations,
institution funds, trusts and conveniences for
the benefit of the employees or of person
having dealings with the Company  and to
form and contribute to provident and benefit
funds for such persons and to carry on the
CSR activities as per law or otherwise.

To provide for the welfare of employees or
ex-employees of the company and the wives
and families or the dependents or connections
of such persons by building of houses and
contributing to pensions, allowances, bonus
or other payments, or by creating and from
time to time, subscribing or contributing
towards places of instruction, recreating
hospital and dispensaries, medical and other
attendance and other assistance including
payment of premiums for medical insurance
schemes, as the company shall think fit.

To compensate for loss of office any Managing
Director or Directors or other Officers of the
company within the limitation prescribed under
the applicable relevant provisions of the
Company Law or other statute of rule having
the force of law and to make payments to any
person whose office, employment or duties
may be determined by v irtue of any
transaction in which the company is engaged.

To create any reserve funds, sinking fund,
insurance fund and any other funds, whether
for depreciation, for repairing, improving,
extending or maintaining any of the property
of the company or for any other purpose
conducive to the interest of the company or
for any purpose whatsoever.

Subject to the applicable relevant legal
provisions, to distribute as dividend or bonus
among the members or the place to reserve
or otherwise to apply as the company may
from time to time think fit, any moneys received
by way of premium on shares or debentures,
issued at a premium by the company and
any money received in respect of dividends
accrued on forfeited shares any moneys arising
from the sale by the company of forfeited
shares or from unclaimed dividends.

Subject to the applicable relevant legal
provisions, to amalgamate or collaborate with
local or foreign companies with or without
capital participation or enter into franchise
arrangement with local or foreign company or
enter into partnership or into any arrangement
for sharing profits, union of interests, co-



operation, joint venture reciprocal concession
or otherwise with any person or company in
India or abroad, carrying on or engaged in or
about to carry on, engage in any business or
transaction, capable of being carried on or
conducted so as directly or indirectly to benefit
this Company and to lend money or guarantee
the contract or of otherwise assist any such
person or company take or otherwise acquire
shares and securities of any such company
and to sell, hold, re-issue with or without
guarantee or otherwise deal with the same;

To establish any purchasing, selling or
distributing organization or agency and to
appoint agents, dealers, distributors, C&F
agents or open branches or depots for the
purpose of the business of the company.

To distribute among the members in specie
or in kind any property of company or any
proceeds of sale or disposal of any property
of the company, so that no distribution
amounting to a reduction of capital be made
except with the sanction, if any, for the time
being required by law.

To sell or dispose of the undertaking of the
company or any part thereof for such
consideration as the company may think fit and
in particular for shares, debentures or securities
of any other company having objects
altogether or in part similar to those of this
company.

To invest any real or personal property rights
or interest acquired by or belonging to the
company in any person on behalf of or for the
benefit of the company and with or without
any declared trusts in favour of the company.

To purchase, take on lease or otherwise
acquire any lands, buildings, machinery, mines
or other property and to build, repair and
construct any factories, houses or other
buildings, quarries or works that may be
necessary or expedient and from time to time
to alter or extend the same.

To manufacture, purchase, sell, import, export
or otherwise deal in all kinds of aseptic/non-

aseptic packing materials, containers and
vessels of every description including tins,
cans, jars, flasks, casks, bottles, crates, cartons,
boxes, tubes, cups, trays, films, pouches,
jugs, whether made of paper, plastic, glass,
and board, PVC, PET, aluminum foils, metal
or any other material or substance and to
fabricate, purchase, sell, import and deal in
any machines or materials used in the
manufacture and filling of the foregoings.

To do and perform all such other acts and things
as may be necessary for the attainment of the
above objects or any of them

(iv)  Deleting the existing clause 4 and substituting
the same with the following clause IV:

The liability of the members is limited and
this liability is limited to the amount unpaid, if
any, on shares held by them.”

(v) Deleting the existing clause 5 and substituting
the same with the following clause V:

The Authorised Share Capital of the
Company is Rs. 25,00,00,000/- (Rupees
Twenty Five Crores only) divided into
50,00,000 Redeemable Preference Shares
of Rs. 10/- each and 2,00,00,000 Equity
Shares of Rs. 10/- each with power to increase
or reduce the capital and to divide the shares
in the capital for the time being into several
classes and to attach thereto respectively such
preferential, deferred, qualified or special
rights, privileges or conditions (including
provisions for redemption) as may be
determined by or in accordance with law and
the regulations from time to time of the
Company and to vary, modify, amalgamate
or abrogate any such rights, privileges or
conditions in such manner as may for the time
being be provided by the regulation of the
Company and the terms of issue.

 the Board of
Directors of the Company or any other person
authorised for the purpose by the Board be and is
hereby authorized to take all such actions, as may
be necessary, desirable or expedient and to do
all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be



incidental or pertinent to give effect to the aforesaid

resolution.”

6. To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without

modifications, the following resolution as a 

:

“  pursuant to the provisions of

Section 5 and 14 and other applicable provisions,

if any, of Companies Act, 2013 read with

Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014  (including

any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment

thereof for the time being in force), and subject to

registrations, approvals, consents, permissions

and sanctions, if any, required from the jurisdictional

Registrar of Companies or any other appropriate

authority/ies and subject to such terms, conditions,

amendments or modifications as may be required

or suggested by such appropriate authorities and

as may be agreed to or approved by the Board

of Directors of the Company, consent of the

members of the Company be and is hereby

accorded to the alteration of the existing Articles of

Association (AOA) in substitution and to the entire

exclusion of the Articles contained in the existing

AOA of the Company.

 the Board of

Directors of the Company or any other person

authorised for the purpose by the Board be and is

hereby authorized to take all such steps and to do

all acts, deeds and things as may be necessary,

expedient, usual, proper or incidental in relation to

the said matter and take such actions and give such

directions as they may consider necessary or

desirable to give effect to this resolution.”

By Order of  the Board

For

CM/28, Ist Floor,

Gagan Enclave, Company Secretary
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad-201 009 (U.P.)

Dated: August 02, 2018

:

1. Explanatory statement pursuant to Section 102

of the Companies Act, 2013 is annexed hereto.

3. A statement giving relevant details of the director

seeking appointment/ reappointment under Item

No. 3 of the accompanying notice, as required

under SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 is annexed

herewith as Annexure-I.

4. Corporate members intending to send their

authorized representatives to attend the meeting

are requested to send the Company a certified

copy of the Board Resolution authorizing their

representative to attend and vote on their behalf

at the meeting.

5. In case of joint shareholder attending the meeting,

only such joint holder who is higher in the order

of names will be entitled to vote.

6. The Registers of Members and Share Transfer

Books of the Company will remain closed from



Saturday, 8th September, 2018 to Friday, 14th

September, 2018 (both days inclusive) for the

purpose of annual closure of books.

7. Shareholders of the Company are informed that

pursuant to the provisions of Section 205A(5)

and 205C of the Companies Act, 1956

(Corresponding Section 124(5) of the

Companies Act, 2013) the amount of dividend

which remains unpaid/unclaimed for a period of

7 years would be transferred to the ‘Investor

Education & Protection Fund’ constituted by the

Central Govt.  Shareholders who have not

encashed their dividend warrant(s) for the years

from 2010-11 to 2016-17 are requested to make

claim with the Company immediately as no claim

shall lie against the Fund or the Company in

respect of individual amount once credited to

the said Fund. Dividend for the year 2009-10

has been transferred to the IEPF.

8. Members holding shares in physical form are

requested to intimate immediately to the

Registrar & Share Transfer Agent of the

Company, M/s MAS Services Ltd., T-34,

2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New

Delhi-110 020 quoting registered Folio No. (a)

details of their bank account/change in bank

account, if any, to enable the Company to print

these details on the dividend warrants; and (b)

change in their address, if any, with pin code

number.  The following information to be

incorporated on the dividend warrants may be

furnished:

i)    Name of Sole/First joint holder and the folio

number.

 ii)   Particulars of Bank Account, viz.

(a) Name of the Bank

(b) Name of the Branch

(c) Complete address of the Bank with

Pin Code number

(d) Bank Account Number allotted by the

Bank and nature of the Account

(Savings/Current etc.)

9. The Securities and Exchange Board of India

(SEBI) has notified the SEBI (Listing Obligations

and Disclosure Requirements) (Fourth

Amendment) Regulations, 2018 whereby

transfer of listed securities will be permitted only

in dematerialised form with a depository w.e.f.

December 05, 2018. In view of the above and

the inherent benefits of holding shares in

dematerialised form, the shareholders holding

shares in physical form are requested to get their

shares dematerialised with any of the Depository

Participants as no request for transfer of securities

held in physical form will be effected on or after

December 05, 2018.

10. Relevant documents referred to in the

accompanying Notice and the Statement are

open for inspection by the members at the

Registered Office of the Company on all working

days, except Saturdays, during business hours

up to the date of the Meeting.

11. In terms of Section 72 of the Companies Act,

2013, the shareholders of the Company may

nominate a person on whom the shares held by

him/her/them shall vest in the event of his/her/

their death. Shareholders desirous of availing this

facility may submit nomination in SH-13.

12. The Company has entered into agreements with

NSDL and CDSL to offer depository services

to the Shareholders. Shareholders can open

account with any of the depository participants

registered with NSDL and CDSL.

13. Any member requiring further information on the

Accounts at the meeting is requested to send



the queries in writing to the Company Secretary

by 4th September, 2018.

14. Members are requested to bring their copies of

Annual Report at the meeting, as extra copies

will not be supplied.

15. Pursuant to the requirement of the Securities and

Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and

Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015,

the Company declares that its equity shares are

listed on the BSE Limited, Mumbai. The

Company has paid the annual listing fee for the

year 2018-19 to the stock exchange.

16. In respect of the matters pertaining to Bank

details, ECS mandates, nomination, power of

attorney, change in name/address etc., the

members are requested to approach the

Company’s Registrar and Shares Transfer

Agent, in respect of shares held in physical form

and the respective Depository Participants, in

case of shares held in electronic form.  In all

correspondence with the Company/Registrar

and Share Transfer Agents, members are

requested to quote their account/folio numbers

or DP ID and Client ID for physical or electronic

holdings respectively.

17. Only registered members carry ing the

attendance slips and the holders of valid proxies

registered with the Company will be permitted

to attend the meeting.

18. The Securities and Exchange Board of India vide

its circular no. CIR/CFD/DIL/10/2010 dated 16

December 2010, amended clause 5A of the

Equity Listing Agreement read with Schedule

VI of the SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure

Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for dealing

with unclaimed shares in physical form. In

compliance with this amendment, the Company

has sent all three reminders to such shareholders

whose share certificates are in undelivered form

and requesting them to update their correct

details viz. postal addresses, PAN details etc.

registered with the Company. The Company

has transferred all the shares into the folio in the

name of “Unclaimed Suspense Account”.

19. As a part of “Green Initiative in the Corporate

Governance”, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs

vide its circular nos. 17/2011 and 1/2011 dated

21.04.2011 and 29.04.2011, respectively, has

permitted the companies to serve the

documents, namely, Notice of General Meeting,

Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit & Loss,

Auditors’ Report, Directors’ Report, etc., to the

members through e-mail. The shareholders

holding shares in physical form are requested to

register their e-mail address with the Registrar &

Share Transfer Agent by sending duly signed

request letter quoting their folio no., name and

address. In case of shares held in demat form,

the shareholders may register their e-mail

addresses with their DPs (Depository

Participants).

20. Members may also note that the Notice of the

77th Annual General Meeting and the Annual

Report for 2018 will also be available on the

Company’s website www.amritcorp.com for

their download. The physical copies of the

aforesaid documents will also be available at

the Company’s Registered Office in Ghaziabad

for inspection during normal business hours on

all working days. Even after registering for e-

communication, members are entitled to receive

such communication in physical form, upon

making a request for the same, by post free of

cost. For any communication, the shareholders

may also send requests to the Company’s

investor email id: info@amritcorp.com,

pkdas@amritcorp.com.

A. In compliance with provisions of Section

108 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule

20 of the Companies (Management and

Administration) Rules, 2014 as amended



by the Companies (Management and

Administration) Amendment Rules, 2015

and Regulation 44(1) of the SEBI (Listing

Obligations & Disclosure Requirements)

Regulations, 2015, the Company is

pleased to provide members facility to

exercise their right to vote at the 77th Annual

General Meeting (AGM) by electronic

means and the business may be transacted

through e-Voting Services. The facility of

casting the votes by the members using

an electronic voting system from a place

other than venue of the AGM (“remote

e-voting”) will be provided by National

Securities Depository Limited (NSDL).

B. The facility for voting through ballot paper

shall be made available at the AGM and

the members attending the meeting who

have not cast their vote by remote e-voting

shall be able to exercise their right at the

meeting through ballot paper.

C. The members who have cast their vote by

remote e-voting prior to the AGM may also

attend the AGM but shall not be entitled to

cast their vote again.

D. The remote e-voting period commences

on 11th September, 2018 (09:00 a.m.) and

ends on 13th September, 2018 (05:00

p.m.). During this period members’ of the

Company, holding shares either in physical

form or in dematerialized form, as on the

cut-off date of 7th September, 2018, may

cast their vote by remote e-voting. The

remote e-voting module shall be disabled

by NSDL for voting thereafter. Once the

vote on a resolution is cast by the member,

the member shall not be allowed to change

it subsequently.

for

members for remote e-voting are as under:

a. Open e-mail and open PDF file

viz.”ACL-remote e-Voting.pdf”

with your client ID or Folio No. as

password containing your user ID

and password for remote

e-voting. Please note that the

password is an initial password.

b. Launch internet browser by typing

the following URL: https://

www.evoting.nsdl.com/.

c. Click on Shareholder-Login.

d. Put user ID and password as initial

password noted in step (a)

above. Click Login.

e. Password change menu appears.

Change the password with new

password of your choice with

minimum 8 digits/characters or

combination thereof. Note new

password. It is strongly

recommended not to share your

password with any other person

and take utmost care to keep your

password confidential.

f. Home page of remote e-voting

opens. Click on remote e-voting:

Active Voting Cycles.

g. Select “EVEN” of “

”.

h. Now you are ready for remote e-

voting as Cast Vote page opens.

i. Cast your vote by selecting

appropriate option and click on



“Submit” and also “Confirm” when

prompted.

j. Upon confirmation, the message

“Vote cast successfully” will be

displayed.

k. Once you have voted on the

resolution, you will not be allowed

to modify your vote.

l. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other

than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are

required to send scanned copy

(PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant

Board Resolution/ Authority letter

etc. together with attested

specimen signature of the duly

authorized signatory(ies) who are

authorized to vote, to the

Scrutinizer through e-mail to

bskashtwal@gmail.com with a

copy marked to

evoting@nsdl.co.in.

a. Initial password is provided in the

communicat ion being sent

separately.

b. Please follow all steps from Sl.

No. (b) to Sl. No. (l) above, to

cast vote.

E. In case of any queries, you may refer the

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for

Members and remote e-voting user manual

for Members available at the downloads

section of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on

toll free no.: 1800-222-990.

F. If you are already registered with NSDL for

remote e-voting then you can use your

existing user ID and password/PIN for

casting your vote.

G. You can also update your mobile number

and e-mail id in the user profile details of the

folio which may be used for sending future

communication(s).

H. The voting rights of members shall be in

proportion to their shares of the paid up

equity share capital of the Company as on

the cut-off date of 7th September, 2018.

I. Any person, who acquires shares of the

Company and become member of the

Company after dispatch of the notice and

holding shares as of the cut-off date i.e. 7th

September, 2018, will be provided notice

through mail or by post after the

cut-off date. Such members may obtain the

login ID and password by sending a request

at evoting@nsdl.co.in or RTA, MAS

Services Limited.

However, if you are already registered with

NSDL for remote e-voting then you can use

your existing user ID and password for

casting your vote.

Shareholders who forgot the User Details/

Password can use “Forgot User Details/

Password?” or “Physical User Reset

Password?” option available on

www.evoting.nsdl.com.

a. In case Shareholders are holding

shares in demat mode, USER-ID is

the combination of (DPID+ClientID).

b. In case Shareholders are holding

shares in physical mode, USER-ID is

the combination of (Even No+Folio

No).

J. A member may participate in the AGM

even after exercising his right to vote through



remote e-voting but shall not be allowed to

vote again at the AGM.

K. A person, whose name is recorded in the

register of members or in the register of

beneficial owners maintained by the

depositories as on the cut-off date only shall

be entitled to avail the facility of remote e-

voting as well as voting at the AGM through

ballot paper.

L. Shri Baldev Singh Kashtwal, Practicing

Company Secretary (Membership No.

FCS-3616 & CP No. 3169), Partner, M/s.

RSM & Co., Company Secretaries, has

been appointed as the Scrutinizer for

providing facility to the members of the

Company to scrutinize the voting and

remote e-voting process in a fair and

transparent manner.

M. The Chairman shall, at the AGM, at the end

of discussion on the resolutions on which

voting is to be held, allow voting with the

assistance of scrutinizer, by use of “Ballot

Paper” for all those members who are

present at the AGM but have not cast their

votes by availing the remote e-voting facility.

N. The Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of

voting at the AGM, will first count the votes

cast at the meeting and thereafter unblock

the votes cast through remote e-voting in

the presence of  at least two witnesses not

in the employment of the Company and

shall make, not later than three days of the

conclusion of the AGM, a consolidated

scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in

favour or against, if any, to the Chairman or

a person authorized by him in writing, who

shall countersign the same and declare the

result of the voting forthwith.

O. The Results declared alongwith the

report of the Scrutinizer shall  be

placed on the website of the Company

www.amritcorp.com and on the website of

NSDL immediately after the declaration of

result by the Chairman or a person

authorized by him in writ ing and

communicated to the BSE Limited.

By Order of  the Board

For

CM/28, Ist Floor,

Gagan Enclave, Company Secretary
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad-201 009 (U.P.)

Dated: August 02, 2018

In accordance with the provisions of sections 196 and
197 read with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013,
the companies can, on their own, appoint and
remunerate its managerial personnel (i.e. managing
director, whole-time director, etc.) within the laid-down
parameters without going to the Central Govt. for
approval. According to the guidelines laid down in
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013:

(a) The remuneration payable by a Company having
adequate net profit shall not have any restriction on
the nature or quantum of remuneration payable by
the Company to its managerial personnel so long
as the remuneration paid during any financial year
is within 5% of its net profit where there is only one
managerial personnel and up to 10% of its net
profit where the managerial personnel are more
than one, of that financial year. The overall
remuneration to all the Directors of the Company
shall, however, be within the ceiling of 11% of the
net profit of the Company for the financial year;

(b) In the case of companies having no profits or
inadequate profits, graded remuneration has been



provided in Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013.

The Net Profit of the Company for the financial year
2016-17 for the purpose of managerial remuneration
was Rs. 1,172.10 lakhs, which means that the
Company can pay upto Rs. 58.61 lakhs as
remuneration to the Managing Director in a financial year.
The proposed remuneration to the Managing Director
is higher than the limit of 5% of the Net Profit. In other
words, the profits of the Company are inadequate for
the purpose of payment of managerial remuneration
and therefore, the remuneration of Shri Ashwini Kumar
Bajaj will be as per Schedule V of the Companies Act,
2013. The effective capital of the Company as per
Audited Accounts for the financial year 2016-17 is Rs.
786.44 lakhs, and therefore, the remuneration of the
Managing Director can be upto Rs. 84.00 lakhs per
annum, based on the graded remuneration provided in
Part II of Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013.

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj was appointed as Managing
Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f.
05.11.2012 as approved by the shareholders by
Special Resolution passed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company held on 13.08.2013. The
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board
as well as Board of Directors have in their separate
meetings held on 19.09.2017, determined the existing
contract for the appointment of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj
and decided, subject to the approval of the
shareholders, to reappoint Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj as
Managing Director for a fresh tenure of 3 years w.e.f.
05.11.2017 on the remuneration given hereunder:

Salary @ Rs. 3,00,000/- per month in the grade of
Rs. 3,00,000 - 50,000 - 6,00,000.

(a) The Managing Director shall also be entitled
to perquisites and allowances like furnished
accommodation or house rent allowance in lieu
thereof subject to a ceiling of 60% of the salary,
house maintenance allowance together with

reimbursement of expenses or allowances
for utilities such as gas, electricity, water,
furnishings, repairs, servants’ salaries, medical
reimbursement for self and dependent family,
medical accident/Keyman Insurance, leave
travel concession for self and family, club
membership subject to maximum of two
clubs; such perquisites and allowances will be
restricted to an amount equal to their annual
salary.

(b) For the purpose of calculating the above
ceiling, perquisites and allowances shall be
evaluated as per the Income-tax Rules,
wherever applicable. In the absence of such
Rules, perquisites and allowances shall be
evaluated at actual cost.

(c) Provision for use of Company’s car for official
duties and telephone at residence shall not
be included in the computation of perquisites
and allowances for the purpose of calculating
the said ceiling. Personal long distance calls
on telephone and use of car for personal
purposes shall be billed by the Company.

(d) Company’s contribution to Provident Fund
and Superannuation Fund or Annuity Fund to
the extent these either singly or together are
not taxable under the Income Tax Act, Gratuity
payable as per the Rules of the Company
and encashment of leave at the end of the
tenure shall not be included in the computation
of limits for the remuneration or perquisites
aforesaid.

3. Pursuant to section 197 and other applicable
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the
remuneration by way of salary, perquisites, and
allowances as set out above be paid as minimum
remuneration to Mr. Ashwini Kumar Bajaj or such
minimum remuneration as permissible in Schedule
V to the Companies Act, 2013 notwithstanding
that in any financial year of the Company during his
tenure as Managing Director, the Company has
made no profits or profits are inadequate.



4. Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj will not be entitled to sitting
fees for attending the meetings of the Board or
Committee (s) thereof.

5. Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj shall be liable to retire by
rotation.

The special resolution set out in Item No. 4 is intended
to obtain approval of the members to the appointment
and payment of remuneration to Shri Ashwini Kumar
Bajaj as the Managing Director and the Board
recommends the acceptance thereof.

The explanatory statement and the resolution at Items
No. 4 of the Notice is and may be treated as an abstract
of the terms and memorandum of interest pursuant to
the provisions of Section 190 of the Companies Act,
2013.

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj is interested or concerned in
the proposed resolution. Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj and
Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj, being related to Shri Ashwini
Kumar Bajaj, may also be deemed to be interested in
the said resolution. None of the other Directors of the
Company is concerned or interested in the resolution.

The terms of remuneration of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj,
has been approved by the Nomination & Remuneration
Committee of the Company.

The information as required pursuant to Part II of
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 is contained

in the statement annexed hereto as Annexure-II.

Our Company was incorporated in the year 1940 and
the Memorandum of Association (MOA) of the
Company was adopted in l ine with the legal
requirements then prevailing under the Indian
Companies Act, 1913. Since then the Company Law
has undergone various changes from time to time. It is,
therefore, proposed to realign the MOA of the
Company in accordance with the current law i.e.
Companies Act, 2013.

Further, it is proposed to venture into the hospitality
business. While carrying on the business of hotels,
restaurants and cafeterias is covered under the existing
Objects Clause of the MOA, the said clause is
proposed to be widened so as to cover all business
activities in the hospitality sector. The Share Capital

Clause is also proposed to be modified so as to
consolidate the two preference shares with power to
issue the same at a future date on such terms and
conditions as may be convenient and desirable at the
time of issue. Accordingly, a new set of MOA of the
Company, based on Table A of Schedule I of the
Companies Act, 2013, is proposed to be adopted as
given in the resolution.

As per Sections 4 and 13 of the Companies Act, 2013
read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014,
alterations proposed to be made in MOA require
approval of the members by Special Resolution.
Accordingly, the Board of Directors of your Company
recommend the passing of the Special Resolution as
set out in Item No. 5 of the Notice.

None of the Directors and/or key managerial personnel
of the Company and their relatives is in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
proposed resolution.

The Board commends the Special Resolution as set
out in item No.5 of the Notice for the approval of the
members of the Company.

Our Company was incorporated in the year 1940 and
the existing Articles of Association (AOA) of the
Company are based on the provisions of Indian
Companies Act, 1913. Since then the Company Law
has undergone various changes from time to time. The
Companies Act, 1956 has been replaced with the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs (MCA) has notified most of the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) which replace
the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The MCA
has also notified the Rules pertaining to the notified
Sections.

In order to bring the existing AOA of the Company in
line with the provisions of the Act,  the Company will
have to make numerous changes in the existing AOA.
It is, therefore considered desirable to adopt a
comprehensive new set of AOA of the Company (New
Articles) in substitution of and to the exclusion of the
existing AOA.

Pursuant to the provisions of Sections 5 and 14 of the
Act read with Companies (Incorporation) Rules, 2014,



approval of the shareholders of the Company by a
Special Resolution is required for adoption of the New
Articles to replace the existing AOA and, accordingly,
approval of the shareholders is being sought for the
adoption of the New Articles.

A copy of the existing AOA and proposed New Articles
to be adopted are available for inspection by the
members at the Registered Office of the Company
during normal business hours on all working days from
the date of dispatch of the notice, upto the date of AGM
and is also posted on the website of the Company at
www.amritcorp.com/Investor relation/draft_AOA.pdf.

None of the Directors and/or key managerial personnel
of the Company and their relatives is in any way
concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the
proposed resolution.

The Board commends the Special Resolution as set
out in item No.6 of the Notice for the approval of the

members of the Company.

By Order of  the Board

For

CM/28, Ist Floor,

Gagan Enclave, Company Secretary
Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad-201 009 (U.P.)

Dated: August 02, 2018



Details of Director seeking re-appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting [in pursuance of SEBI
(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

24.11.1932

Indian

M.A., LLB, IAS (Retired)

21.05.2003

500 Equity Shares

Distinguished bureaucrat (retired IAS officer) having
long experience in administration and industrial
development & management of public/ private
sector companies.

—

1. Subros Limited

2. Bharat Seats Limited

3. Action Construction Equipment Limited

 :

- Bharat Seats Limited

- Subros Limited

- Rohan Motors Limited

 :

- Action Construction Equipments Limited

 :

- Subros Limited

 :

- Bharat Seats Limited

Committee membership includes only Audit Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of public
Limited Companies (whether listed or not).



The Company is engaged in the business of production of milk/milk products.

The Company is an existing Company and has already commenced its business.

Not applicable.

(Rs. in lakhs)

Gross Sales Turnover 5,493.51 4,956.11 4,206.66 4,748.46 5,417.33

Net Profit/(Loss) before Interest,
Depreciation & Tax 1,034.28 1,286.95 1,065.40 1,108.57 1,737.03

Net Profit/(Loss) as per Profit &
Loss Account 886.09 1,091.25 1,069.95 1,097.29 1,652.63

Amount of dividend paid (including
accumulated preference dividend for
past years) 160.66 160.66 192.79 240.99 257.06

Rate of dividend declared
- Equity 5.00 5.00 6.00 7.50 8.00
- Preference — — — — —

The Company does not have any foreign investments or collaborations.

, aged 56 years, is a graduate in Science from Delhi University. He joined
Amrit Group in the year 1984 and worked as Chief Executive of the flagship company, Amrit Banaspati
Company Ltd.’ now renamed as ‘Amrit Corp. Ltd.’(‘the Company’). He was appointed as Joint Managing
Director of the Company on 1st August, 1992. Shri A. K. Bajaj was instrumental in setting up the dairy
business of the Company and establishing state-of-the-art facility for processing of UHT milk and other
dairy products. Shri A. K. Bajaj is also overseeing the real estate business and treasury operations of the



Company. Shri A.K.Bajaj is on the Boards of various companies, including, Amrit Corp. Ltd; Amrit Banaspati
Company Pvt. Ltd; Amrit Learning Ltd., among others.

(Rs. in lakhs)

2015-16 56.16

2016-17 58.60

2017-18 67.01

Nil

 has been instrumental in diversifying the operations of the Company into dairy and real
estate businesses. He has established state-of-the art facility for processing UHT milk and other milk
based products. He is also overseeing the real estate business and the treasury operations of the
Company and assisting the Chairman & Managing Director in various other corporate matters.

Salary Rs. 3,00,000/- in the grade of 3,00,000 - 50,000 – 6,00,000

Perquisites &  Furnished accommodation or house rent allowance in lieu thereof subject to a
allowances ceiling of 60% of the salary, house maintenance allowance together with

reimbursement of expenses or allowances for utilities such as gas, electricity,
water, furnishings, repairs, servants’ salaries, medical reimbursement for self and
dependent family, medical accident/Keyman Insurance, leave travel concession
for self and family, club membership subject to maximum of two clubs; such
perquisites and allowances will be restricted to an amount equal to their annual
salary.

 Provision for use of Company’s car for official duties and telephone at residence.

Taking into consideration the size of the Company, the remuneration drawn by him in the past, the profile
of Shri A. K. Bajaj and  the responsibilities shouldered by him, the aforesaid remuneration package is
commensurate with the remuneration package paid to managerial positions in other companies.

Besides the remuneration proposed, the Managing Directors does not have any other pecuniary relationship
with the Company. Shri N. K. Bajaj and Shri V. K. Bajaj, Directors of the Company, being father and
brother respectively of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj, are related to each other.



The Company has been profitable for the last few years.  However, the profits are inadequate and,
hence, the remuneration has been proposed as per Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013.

The Company has been taking various steps from time to time for enlarging the operations of the
Company and consequently improving its profitability. The proposed plans to foray into the hospitability
sector is another step in the direction of expansion of Company’s operations and improving the profitability.

The financial performance of the Company will improve with the addition of the hospitality business to the
existing business portfolio of the Company.



Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 77th Annual Report on the business and operations of the Company
together with the audited financial statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018.

The summarized financial results of the Company for the financial year 2017-18 are given hereunder:

(Rs.in lakhs)

2016-17

Revenue from operations & other income 6,880.75

Operating Profit (EBIDTA) 1,621.51

Finance Cost 209.99

Gross Profit (PBD) 1,411.52

Depreciation & amortization 149.67

Profit before tax 1,261.85

Provision for

- Current Tax (net) 141.80

- Deferred Tax (incl. MAT Credit Entitlement) (86.71)

Net Profit 1,206.76

Other Comprehensive Income (14.33)

Total Comprehensive Income for the year 1,192.43

Opening balance of Retained Earnings 8,727.26

Amount available for appropriation 9,911.13

Dividend on Equity Shares -

Tax on Equity Dividend -

Transferred to General Reserve 1,000.00

8,911.13



The Company has adopted Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) w.e.f. 1st April, 2017 with a transition
date of 1st April, 2016. Accordingly, the financial
statements for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018
have been prepared in accordance with Ind AS
prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (the Act) and other accounting principles generally
accepted in India. Previous period’s figures have been
restated as per Ind AS to make them comparable.

Your Directors are pleased to recommend Dividend of
Rs. 8.00 per equity share of Rs. 10/- each (i.e. 80%)
for the financial year ended 31st March, 2018 subject to
approval of the shareholders at the ensuing annual
general meeting as against the Dividend of Rs.7.50
per equity share of Rs.10/- each (i.e. 75%) paid for the
Year ended 31st March, 2017.

 During the year under review, the revenue from
operations increased by 14.41% to Rs.5,417.33
lakhs  as against Rs. 4,735.17 lakhs in the previous
year. The growth is primarily on account of higher
volumes and prices of dairy milk/milk products.

 The operating profit (EBIDTA) of Rs. 2,045.72
lakhs recorded during the year is higher by 26.16%
than the previous year.  The profit after tax for the
year was Rs. 1,652.62 lakhs as against Rs.
1,206.76 lakhs in the previous year;

 The production of dairy milk & milk products during
the year has grown by 4.47% to 7,362 KL as
against 7,047 KL in the previous year;

The raw milk prices were at low levels throughout
the year due to increase in milk production.
Consequently, there has been significant
improvement in margins of dairy milk/milk products
during the year;

 In the case of real estate, the Company has been
able to liquidate some of the inventory of
commercial shops in the Gagan Enclave Extension
project. To expand and enlarge the scope of the
real estate business, venturing into the hospitality
sector is being considered;

 The Company has deployed surplus funds in
treasury operations. The Other Income during the
year was Rs.2,324.31 lakhs as against
Rs.2,145.58 lakhs recording an increase of 8.33%.
The treasury operations of the Company
continued to focus on deployment of surplus
liquidity within a well defined risk management
framework.

As required by Regulation 34(2) of the Securities and
Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI
LODR”), Management Discussion and Analysis Report
for the year ended 31.03.2018 is appended.

The paid-up Equity Share Capital as on 31st March,
2018 was Rs.321.32 lakhs. During the year under
review, the Company has not issued shares with
differential voting rights nor granted stock options
nor sweat equity.

Your Company has not accepted any public
deposits under Chapter 4 of the Companies Act,
2013.  As such, no amount of principal or interest
on deposits from the public was outstanding as on
the date of the Balance Sheet.

Particulars of loans, guarantees and investments
covered under the provisions of Section 186 of
the Act, are given in the Notes to the Financial
Statements.

The Company is committed to uphold the highest
standard of corporate governance and believe that
business relationship can be strengthened through
corporate fairness, transparency and accountability. Your
Company is fully compliant with all the mandatory
provisions of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015. A Report on



Corporate Governance with a Certificate from the
Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of the
conditions of Corporate Governance is annexed as
Annexure-A and forms part of this Annual Report.
A Certificate from the Chairman & Managing
Director and Chief Financial Officer confirming
the correctness of the financial statements, adequacy
of internal control measures and reporting of matters to
the Audit Committee in terms of SEBI (Listing
Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015 and a Declaration by the Chairman & Managing
Director for compliance with the Company’s Code of
Conduct are annexed as Annexure-A and form part of
this Report.

Your Company has put in place a Corporate
Social Responsibility Policy in line with Section 135
and Schedule VIII of the Act.  The Policy is available on
the website of the Company at www.amritcorp.com.
As per the Policy, the CSR activities are carried on in
areas of skill development & language training for
employability, livelihood and income generation,
preventive health and sanitation, waste resource
management and water conservation and also
contribute to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund,
National Mission for Clean Ganga and Swachh Bharat
Kosh.

The Annual Report on CSR activities, as required
under the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014 has been appended as
Annexure-B and forms integral part of this Report.

The Board of Directors of your Company has
constituted a Risk Management Committee to identify
elements of risk in different areas of operations and to
develop policy for actions associated to mitigate the
risks.  The Audit Committee and the Board of
Directors are informed of the risks associated
and minimization procedures on timely basis. The
details of the Committee, its terms of reference
and the Risk Management Policy are set out
in the Corporate Governance Report forming part of
this Report. The Risk Management Policy is posted on
the website of the Company at www.amritcorp.com.

Pursuant to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act,
2013, the Company has formulated a Whistle Blower
Policy to establish a vigil mechanism for directors and
employees of the Company.  The purpose and
objective of this Policy is to provide a framework to
promote responsible and secure whistle blowing. It
protects the employees wishing to raise a concern about
serious irregularities within the Company. The details of
the Whistle Blower Policy are explained in the
Corporate Governance Report and also posted on
the website of the Company at www.amritcorp.com.

The Board of Directors has approved a Code of
Conduct which is applicable to the members of the
Board and all employees in the course of day to day
business operations of the Company. The Company
believes in zero tolerance against bribery, corruption
and unethical dealings/ behaviours of any form. The
Code has been pasted on the Company’s website at
www.amritcorp.com. The Code lays down the standard
procedure of business conduct which is expected to
be followed by the Directors and the designated
employees in their business dealings and in particular
on matters relating to integrity in the work place, in
business practices and in dealing with stakeholders. All
the Board Members and the senior management
personnel have confirmed compliance with the Code.
A Declaration by the Chairman & Managing Director
regarding compliance with the Company’s Code of
Conduct is attached to the Report on Corporate
Governance.

No Related Party Transactions were entered into during
the financial year 2017-18. All Related Party
Transactions entered into in the past were on an arm’s
length basis and were in the ordinary course of business.
There are no materially significant Related Party
Transactions made by the Company with promoters,
directors, Key Managerial Personnel or other designated
persons which may have potential conflict with the
interest of the Company at large.

On the recommendation of the Audit Committee, the
Board of Directors has adopted a policy on Related
Party Transactions, which is also uploaded on the



website of the Company (www.amritcorp.com) under
the head ‘Investor Relations’.  The Policy envisages
the procedure governing related party transactions
required to be followed to ensure compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations as well as to ensure
that the Related Party Transactions are managed and
disclosed in accordance with the strict legal and
accounting requirements.

A statement of all related party transactions is presented
before the Audit Committee on a quarterly basis,
specifying the nature, value and terms & conditions of
the transactions. The statement is supported by a
certificate from the CEO and CFO.

None of the Directors has any pecuniary relationships
or transactions vis-à-vis the Company.

The Company believes that all employees have right
to be treated with dignity and to work in an environment
free of sexual harassment. The Company will not permit
or condone sexual harassment at workplace. The
Company will make every effort to ensure that no
employee or visitor or any other person is subjected to
sexual harassment at any of the Company’s workplaces
and the allegations of sexual harassment will be dealt
with seriously, expeditiously and confidentially. The
Company has in place a formal policy for prevention of
sexual harassment, which has been framed in
accordance with the provisions of “The Sexual
Harassment of Woman at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013” and Rules framed
thereunder. No complaints of sexual harassment was
received during the year.

There are no significant and material orders passed
by the Regulators/ Courts which would impact the
going concern status of the Company and its future
operations.

The details pertaining to composition of the Audit
Committee are included in the Report on Corporate
Governance. All the recommendations made by the
Committee were accepted by the Board.

The Directors have laid-down internal financial controls
to be followed by the Company and such policies and
procedures adopted by the Company for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including
adherence to Company’s policies, safeguarding of its
assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors,
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records and timely preparation of reliable financial
information. The Audit Committee evaluates the internal
financial control system periodically.

No changes have taken place in the Board of
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel  (KMP)
during the year. The details of the Directors are
given in the Corporate Governance Report. Upon
completion of his tenure, Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj
has been re-appointed as Managing Director of
the Company by the Board of Directors for a
period of three years w.e.f. 5th November, 2017.
The said re-appointment of Shri Ashwini Kumar
Bajaj is subject to the approval of the shareholders
at the annual general meeting.

In accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Articles of Association
of the Company, Shri G.N.Mehra retires by rotation
and is eligible for re-appointment.

All Independent Directors have given declarations
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid
down under Section 149(6) of the Act.

In compliance with the provisions of the Act, and
Regulations 17 and 19 read with Part D of Schedule
II to the SEBI LODR, the Board has carried out
annual performance evaluation  of its own
performance, the directors individually as well as
the evaluation of the working of its Nomination &



Remuneration Committee. The manner in which
the evaluation has been carried out has been
explained in the Corporate Governance Report.
The Directors expressed satisfaction with the
evaluation process and performance of the Board
of Directors and the Committee.

The Board has, on the recommendation of the
Nomination & Remuneration Committee, framed
a Policy for selection, appointment and
remuneration of Directors and Key Managerial
Personnel. More details of the same are given in
the Corporate Governance Report.

The newly appointed Independent Directors are
taken through a training & familiarization programme
to familiarize them with their role, rights and
responsibility as Directors, the working of the
Company, nature of industry in which the Company
operates, business model etc.

The Directors are regularly informed during
meetings of the Board and Committees of the
activities of the Company, its operations and issues
facing the industry. Considering the long association
of the Directors with the Company and their
seniority and expertise in their respective
areas of specialization, continuous training and
familiarization every year is not considered
necessary for the existing Directors and,
accordingly, no such programmes were conducted
during the year.

During the year, six (6) Board Meetings and four
(4) Audit Committee Meetings were convened
and held. The details are given in the Corporate
Governance Report. The intervening gap between
the Meetings was within the period prescribed
under the Companies Act, 2013.

To the best of their knowledge and belief and according
to the information and explanations obtained by them,

your Directors make the following statements in terms
of the section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013:

(i) that in the preparation of the annual financial
statements for the year ended March 31, 2018,
the applicable accounting standards have been
followed along with proper explanation relating to
material departures, if any;

(ii) that such accounting policies, as mentioned in the
Financial Statements, have been selected and
applied consistently and judgments and estimates
have been made that are reasonable and prudent
so as to give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the company as at March 31, 2018 and of
the profit of the Company for the year ended on
that date;

(iii) that proper and sufficient care has been taken for
the maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies
Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities;

(iv) that the annual financial statements have been
prepared on a going concern basis;

(v) that proper internal financial controls were in place
and that the financial controls were adequate and
were operating effectively;

(vi) that proper systems to ensure compliance with
the provisions of all applicable laws were in place
and were adequate and operating effectively.

At the 76th Annual General Meeting held on 19th

September, 2017, M/s Mukesh Aggarwal & Co.,
Chartered Accountants, New Delhi (ICAI
Registration No. 011393N) have been appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for an
initial period of 5 years from the conclusion of 76th

annual general meeting  till the conclusion of 81st

annual general meeting.

The Report given by M/s Mukesh Aggarwal &
Co., Chartered Accountants, on the financial
statements of the Company for the year 2017-18



is part of the Annual Report. There has been no
qualification, reservation or adverse remark or
disclaimer in their Report. During the year under
review, the Auditors had not reported any matter
under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act,
2013, therefore, no detail is required to be
disclosed.

The goods produced by the Company are not
covered under cost audit and, therefore, pursuant
to Section 148 of the Companies Act, 2013 read
with the Companies (Cost Records and Audit)
Amendment Rules, 2014, the Company is not
required to maintain the cost audit records.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Company
has appointed M/s RSM & Co., a firm of Company
Secretaries in Practice, to undertake the
Secretarial Audit of the Company. The Report of
the Secretarial Audit is annexed herewith as
Annexure-C.

The information relating to conservation of energy,
technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings
& outgo as required under Section 134(3)(m) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 is Annexed
herewith as  Annexure-D.

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual
Return in form MGT 9 is annexed herewith as
Annexure-E.

Employee relations continued to be cordial throughout
the year in the Company. The Directors express their
appreciation for the contribution made by the
employees to the operations of the Company during
the year.

The provisions of Rule 5(2) & (3) of the Companies
(Appointment & Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014 requiring particulars of the
employees in receipt of remuneration in excess of
Rs.102 lakhs per year to be disclosed in the Report of
Board of Directors are not applicable to the Company
as  none of the employees was in receipt of
remuneration in excess of Rs.102 lakhs during the
financial year 2017-18.

The information required under Section 197(12) of the
Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5 of the
Companies (Appointment & Remuneration of
Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is given in the
Statement annexed herewith as Annexure-F.

Your Directors convey their sincere thanks to the various
agencies of the Central Government, State
Governments, Banks and other concerned agencies
for all the help and cooperation extended to the
Company. The Directors also deeply acknowledge
the trust and confidence the shareholders and
investors have placed in the Company. Your Directors
also record their appreciation for the dedicated services
rendered by the workers, staff and officers of the
Company.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida
August 02, 2018 Chairman & Managing Director



The last financial year was a momentous year with major reforms undertaken by the Government.
Implementation of GST encouraged financial discipline and the Fiscal Responsibility and Budget Management
Act strengthened India’s institutional framework with the goal of reducing fiscal deficit and improving macro-
economic management. India is witnessing structural shifts at multiple levels and across various sectors. It is
not only transitioning from an informal to formal economy but also from a cash to a digital economy, a rural to
an urban and an offline to an online one. Due to this, the economy may experience short-term pains but in
the long run it stands to gain.

Despite a tepid start, economic growth accelerated during the year. Consumption related indicators have
strengthened and industrial output has been higher in recent months. The average performance of the
agriculture sector also improved in comparison to previous years; all thanks to a normal monsoon and the
support of the Central and State Governments.

Despite inflationary pressures arising out of hardening of crude oil prices and increase in consumption
demand, the GDP growth is expected to touch a respectable mark of 7.5% in the next fiscal, up from 6.5%
in the previous year. The 2018 Global Economic Prospects, released by World Bank, estimates India’s
GDP growth to remain steady at 7.5% in the long term.

The upgrading of India’s government bond rating by Moody’s as well as the RBI’s marginal reduction in
repo rate further contributed to the elevated growth sentiments felt during the year. A country’s international
rankings and sovereign ratings are used by investors not only to ascertain its macroeconomic health and
investment climate, but also to instil confidence in its economy. In terms of the ‘Ease of Doing Business’,
India emerged in the top 100 countries, an improvement of 30 places. This improvement was attributed to
the changes brought about by the sustained business reforms, undertaken over the course of the year.

India is the World’s largest producer of dairy milk and milk products. Dairy activities form an essential
part of rural Indian economy, serving as an important source of employment and income. Nearly all
dairy products in India are consumed domestically with the majority of it being sold as liquid milk.
On account of this, Indian dairy industry holds tremendous potential for value addition and overall
development. Besides offering business opportunities, dairy industry in India also serves as a
tool of socio-economic development. Keeping this in view, the Government of India has introduced
various schemes and initiatives aimed at the development of the dairy sector in the country. For
instance, the “National Dairy Programme” aims to improve cattle productivity and increase the
production of milk, expand and strengthen rural milk procurement infrastructure and to provide
greater market access to the farmers. On the other hand, the private participation in the Indian dairy
sector has also increased over the past few years. Both national and international players have
entered the dairy industry, attracted by the size and potential of the Indian dairy market. The focus
now is on value-added and innovative products keeping in mind the specific requirements of the
Indian consumer.

The per capita availability and consumption of milk in India has also grown steadily and is now
comparable to the world average. This represents a sustained growth in availability of milk and milk
products for the growing population.



The growth of Indian dairy industry during the last three decades has been impressive, at more
than 5% p.a., as a result of which, India has emerged as the largest producer of milk. In India, the
cooperatives and private dairies have access to only about 30% of the milk produced; approximately
30% of the milk is sold in the unorganized market while 40% is consumed locally. This is in comparison
to the most of the developed nations where almost 90% of the milk passes through the organized
sector.

Among the value-added products, ice-cream and cheese are the fastest growing segments of the
dairy/food processing industry. The ice-cream market is growing at a rate of 15-20% year on year.
To take advantage of this growing market, your Company’s product, ‘Ice-cream Mix’ is now being
distributed in the market nationally besides catering to the requirement of various QSRs like Burger
King, McDonald’s etc.

The production of dairy milk & milk products during the year has grown by 4.47% to 7,362 KL as
against 7,047 KL in the previous year. The increase in production is mainly in ice-cream mix and
UHT milk. The Dairy Division’s revenue from operations increased by 12.44% to Rs.5,324.43
lakhs  as against Rs. 4,735.17 lakhs in the previous year. The operating profit (EBIDTA) increased
to Rs.791.97 lakhs as against Rs.377.47 lakhs in the previous year.

Organized dairy industry handles only around 30% of the milk produced. Cost effective technologies
and quality control measures are seldom exercised in un-organized sector and remain as key
issues to be addressed. Milk, which is perishable, needs efficient cold chain management that can
be provided by  organized players as the same involves more capital investment. Continuous
availability of good quality feed and scientifically tested and properly managed animal husbandry
practices play a vital role in improving milk yields.

Your Company is continuously developing and applying scientific methods to improve the quality
of milk processed and extend its shelf life.

The Indian Dairy Industry is growing on a fast track. India is world’s largest milk producer and has a
potential to become a leading supplier and exporter of milk and milk products. Milk production is
skill intensive and labour intensive. Due to low labour costs, the cost of milk is significantly lower in
India. Investments have been made in milk procurement, equipment, chilling and refrigeration
facilities to improve the quality and bring dairy production to international standards.

The Dairy Division of the Company has segmentized its business into retail, institutions and food
services with a view to increase market penetration, open new upcoming markets, special thrust on
food services segment and constant liaison with institutional clients and QSRs.  Dairy Division is
now focussing on high value specialty products in addition to increase in ice-cream mix production
for nationwide distribution.

In the case of real estate, the Company has been able to liquidate some of the inventory of commercial
shops in the Gagan Enclave Extension project. No major project has been taken up during the year nor
is proposed to be taken up in the foreseeable future.



During the year, your Company’s treasury operations continued to focus on deployment of surplus
funds within a well-defined risk management frame-work.

All investment decisions relating to deployment of surplus funds continued to be guided by the tenets
of Safety, Liquidity and Return.  Proactive rebalancing of portfolio mix in line with the evolving interest
rate environment helped to improve treasury performance. Your Company’s risk management
processes ensured that all deployments are made with proper evaluation of the underlying risk while
remaining focused on capturing market opportunities.

During the year under review, the revenue from operations increased by 14.41% to Rs.5,417.33 lakhs  as
against Rs. 4,735.17 lakhs in the previous year. The growth is primarily on account of higher volumes and
prices of dairy milk/milk products. The operating profit (EBIDTA) of Rs. 2,045.72 lakhs recorded during the
year is higher by 26.16% than the previous year.  The profit after tax for the year was Rs. 1,652.62 lakhs as
against Rs. 1,206.76 lakhs in the previous year;

Your Company has evolved a system of internal controls to ensure that the assets are safeguarded and
transactions are authorised, recorded and correctly reported. The internal control system is supplemented
by management reviews and independent periodical reviews by the outside chartered accountancy firms
which evaluate the functioning and quality of internal controls and provides assurance of its adequacy and
effectiveness. The scope of internal audit covers a wide variety of operational methods and, as a minimum,
ensures compliance with specified standards with regard to availability and suitability of policies and
procedures, extent of adherence, reliability of management information system and authorization procedures
including steps for safeguarding of assets. The reports of internal audit are placed before Audit Committee
of the Directors. Audit Committee reviews such audit findings and the adequacy of internal control systems.
The Statutory Auditors and the Internal Auditors of the Company also interact with the Audit Committee to
share their findings and the status of corrective actions under implementation.

The Company lays great emphasis on proper management of human resources and believes that this is
the most important ingredient for achieving excellence in performance and sustainable growth. The
management constantly reviews the skill mix and takes appropriate steps to achieve desired skill mix. For
upgrading the skill, special emphasis is laid on training. Selective and intensive training is being imparted to
employees at various levels.

Statements in the Board’s Report and the Management Discussion & Analysis describing the Company’s
objectives, expectations or forecasts may be forward-looking within the meaning of applicable securities
laws and regulations. Actual results may differ materially from those expressed in the statement.
Important factors that could influence the Company’s operations include global and domestic demand
and supply conditions affecting selling prices, changes in government regulations, tax laws, economic
development regulations, tax laws, economic developments within the country and other factors such
as litigation and industrial relations.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida
August 02, 2018 Chairman & Managing Director



The principles of Corporate Governance and the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics are the cornerstones of your
Company. Your Company has consistently striven to implement best corporate governance practices reflecting its
strong value system and ethical business conduct. The Company’s philosophy on Corporate Governance envisages
attainment of highest levels of transparency, accountability and integrity in the functioning of the Company with a
view to create value that can be sustained continuously for the benefit of its stakeholders. All employees are bound
by a Code of Conduct that sets forth Company’s policies on important issues including our relationship with
consumers, shareholders and Government.

The Board of Directors consisted of 9 Directors as on 31st March, 2018. The Board has a healthy blend of executive
and non-executive directors which ensures the desired level of independence in functioning and decision making.
The Board comprises of a Chairman & Managing Director, a Managing Director and seven Non-Executive Directors.
Out of nine directors, five Non-Executive Directors are independent directors including one woman director. All the
non-executive directors are eminent professionals and bring in wealth of expertise and experience for directing the
management of the Company.

The primary role of the Board is to protect the interest and enhance value for all the stakeholders. The Board operates
within the framework of a well defined responsibility matrix which enables it to discharge its fiduciary duties of
safeguarding the interest of the Company, ensuring fairness in decision making process, integrity and transparency
of the Company’s dealing with its members and other stakeholders.

Naresh Kumar Bajaj * Promoter/Executive 6 5 Yes 2 - -
(Chairman & MD)
DIN – 00026221

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj Promoter/Executive 6 6 Yes 1 - -
(Managing Director)
DIN - 00026247

Vikram Kumar Bajaj Promoter/ 6 6 Yes 2 - 1
DIN – 00026236 Non-Executive

Girish Narain Mehra Non-Independent/ 6 6 Yes 4 4 2
DIN – 00059311 Non-Executive

K. R. Ramamoorthy Independent/ 6 6 Yes 3 2 2
DIN – 00058467 Non-Executive

Mohit Satyanand — do — 6 5 Yes 2 1 1
DIN – 00826799

Sundeep Aggarwal — do — 6 4 No 2 - 1
DIN – 00056690

Sujal Anil Shah — do — 6 6 Yes 7 3 5
DIN - 00058019

Ketaki Sood — do — 6 6 Yes - - -
DIN - 00904653

* Without remuneration.
** Committee positions of only of Audit Committee and the Stakeholders Relationship Committee have been considered as per

Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

ANNEXURE “A” TO BOARD’S REPORT



During the financial year 2017-18, Six (6) Board Meetings were held on May 15, 2017, July 17, 2017,
September 19, 2017, November 14, 2017, January 31, 2018 and March 30, 2018. The maximum
interval between any two meetings was not more than 4 months.

Following Directors are related with each other

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj Father of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj and  Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj Son of Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj and Brother of Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj Son of Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj and Brother of Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj 57,834

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,56,238

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,56,400

Shri Girish Narain Mehra 500

Shri K. R. Ramamoorthy 500

Shri Mohit Satyanand 500

Shri Sujal Anil Shah NIL

Shri Sundeep Aggarwal 500

Smt. Ketaki Sood NIL

The Board of Directors has complete access to any information within the Company. At the Board
Meetings, directors are provided with all relevant information on important matters, working of the Company
as well as all related details that require deliberations by the members of the Board.

Information regularly provided to the Board inter-alia include:

- Annual operating plans, budgets & updates;

- Expansion/capital expenditure plans & updates;

- Production, sales & financial performance data;

- Business-wise operational review;

- Quarterly and annual financial results with segment-wise information;



- Minutes of the meetings of the Audit and other committees as well as circular resolutions passed;

- Significant initiatives and developments relating to labour/human resource relation and/or problems
and their proposed solutions;

- Information on recruitment and remuneration of senior officers just below the Board level, including
appointment or removal of Chief Financial Officer and Company Secretary;

- Materially important show cause/demand/prosecution/penalty notices and legal proceedings by or
against the Company;

- Fatal or serious accidents or dangerous occurrences;

- Any issue which involves public or product liability claims of substantial nature;

- Materially significant effluent or pollution problems;

- Material default in financial obligations to and by the Company or substantial non-payment for goods
sold by the Company;

- Non-compliances of any regulatory or statutory provision or listing requirement on non-payment of
dividend or delay in share transfers;

- Compliance reports of all laws applicable to the Company;

- Details of any joint-venture or collaboration agreement;

- Transactions that involve substantial payment towards goodwill, brand equity or intellectual prop-
erty;

- Proposals for investments, divestments, loans, guarantees, mergers and acquisitions;

- Sale of material nature of investments, subsidiaries and assets which is not in the normal course of
business;

- Quarterly details of foreign exchange exposure and the steps taken by the management to limit the
risk of adverse exchange rate movement;

- Any other information which is relevant for decision-making by the Board.

The newly appointed Independent Directors are taken through a training & familiarization programme to
familiarize them with their role, rights and responsibility as Directors, the working of the Company, nature
of industry in which the Company operates, business model etc.

The Directors are regularly informed during meetings of the Board and Committees of the activities of the
Company, its operations and issues facing the industry. Considering the long association of the Directors
with the Company and their seniority and expertise in their respective areas of specialization, continuous
training and familiarization every year is not considered necessary for the existing Directors and, accordingly,
no such programmes were conducted during the year.

No new Independent Director has been appointed by the Company during the financial year 2017-18
and hence no familiarization programme has been conducted. The same has also been uploaded on the
website of the Company viz. www.amritcorp.com.



In compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board during the year adopted a formal mechanism for evaluation
of its performances as well as that of its committees and individual Directors, including the Chairman of the
Board. A structured questionnaire was prepared after taking into consideration inputs received from the
Directors, covering various aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the
Board and its Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and
governance.

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors including the
Chairman of the Board, who were evaluated on parameters such as level of engagement and contribu-
tion, independence of judgement, safeguarding the interest of the Company and its minority sharehold-
ers, etc. The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was carried out by the entire Board.
The performance evaluation of the Chairman and the Non-Independent Directors was carried out by the
Independent Directors. The Directors expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process.

In compliance with Section 149(8) of the Companies Act, 2013, read along with Schedule IV of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 25(3) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Independent Directors met on March 30, 2018, inter alia, to
discuss:

(a) Evaluation of the performance of non-Independent Directors and the Board as a whole;

(b) Evaluation of the performance of the Chairperson of the company, taking into account the views of
executive directors and non-executive directors;

(c) Evaluation of the quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the company man-
agement and the Board that is necessary for the Board to effectively and reasonably perform their
duties.

All the Independent Directors were present at the meeting.

The Board of Directors of the Company have adopted Code of Business Conduct & Ethics. This Code
is based on three fundamental principles, viz. good corporate governance, good corporate citizenship
and exemplary conduct and is applicable to all the Directors and senior management personnel.

In terms of the requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015, the Code of Business Conduct & Ethics, as approved by the Board of Directors, has been
displayed at the website of the company, , under the heading ‘Investor Relations’.
All the members of the Board and senior management personnel have affirmed compliance with the
Code for the year ended 31st March, 2018 and a declaration to that effect signed by the Chairman &
Managing Director is attached and forms part of this report.

The Company has a Code of Conduct for Prevention of Insider Trading in the shares and securities of the
Company. This Code, interalia, prohibits purchase/sale of shares of the Company by Directors and
employees while in possession of unpublished price sensitive information in relation to the Company.
This Code is available on the Company’s website, 



All the Board Members and senior management personnel of the Company have affirmed
compliance of the Code of Conduct for the year ended 31st March, 2018. A declaration to that effect
signed by the Chairman & Managing Director is attached and forms part of the Annual Report of the
Company.

With a view to have more focused attention on various facets of business and for better accountability,
the Board has constituted various mandatory and other Committees from time to time. The terms of
reference of these Committees are determined by the Board and their relevance reviewed from time to time.
The minutes of the Committee meetings are circulated to all Directors individually and tabled at the Board
meetings.

The Audit Committee was constituted on 29th July, 1995 and has since been in position since then. The
scope and the terms of reference for the working of the Audit Committee is constantly reviewed and
changes made from time to time to ensure effectiveness of the Committee. The constitution and terms of
reference of the Audit Committee conform to the requirements of Section 177 of the Companies Act,
2013 and Regulation 18 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015. Presently, the following functions are performed by the Audit Committee:

 Overseeing the company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of financial information to
ensure that the financial statements are correct, sufficient and credible;

 Recommending to the Board, the appointment, re-appointment and, if required, the replacement or
removal of the statutory & internal auditors, fixing audit fees and approving payments for any other
service;

 Reviewing with management the annual financial statements before submission to the Board;

 Reviewing with the management Quarterly/Annual and other financial statements before submission
to the Board for approval;

 Reviewing with the management the performance of statutory and internal auditors, the adequacy of
internal control systems and recommending improvements to the management;

 Reviewing the adequacy of internal audit function;

 Discussing with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon;

 Reviewing the findings of any internal investigation by the internal auditors into matters where there
is a suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of the internal control systems of a material nature and
reporting the matter to the Board;

 Discussing with the statutory auditors before the audit commences on the nature and scope of audit
as well as have post-audit discussions to ascertain any area of concern;

 Reviewing reports furnished by statutory & internal auditors and ensuring follow-up thereon;

 Reviewing the Company’s financial and risk management policies; and



 Initiating investigations into the reasons for substantial defaults in the payments to the depositors,
debenture holders, shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors, if
any.

The Committee also reviews the Management Discussion and Analysis of the financial condition and
results of operations, statements of significant related party transactions and any other matter which may
be a part of its terms of reference or referred to by the Board of Directors.

The Company continues to derive immense benefit from the deliberations of the Audit Committee. The
Audit Committee of the Company as on 31st March, 2018 comprised of the following four directors of the
Company – three non-executive & independent and one executive & non-independent:

Shri K. R. Ramamoorthy Chairman Independent, Non-Executive Director

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj Member Non-Independent, Executive Director

Shri Mohit Satyanand Member Independent, Non-Executive Director

Shri Sujal Anil Shah Member Independent, Non-Executive Director

During the financial year 2017-18, Audit Committee met Four (4) times and the attendance of the Directors
on the above meetings was as follows:

Shri K. R. Ramamoorthy 4 4

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj 4 4

Shri Mohit Satyanand 4 3

Shri Sujal Anil Shah 4 4

The Managing Director, Executive Director and other senior executives (when required) are invited to the
meetings. Representatives of the statutory auditors and internal auditors are also invited to the meetings,
when required. All the meetings are attended by the Statutory Auditors.

The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary of the Committee.

All the members of the Audit Committee were present at the last AGM held on September 19, 2017.

All the recommendations of the Audit Committee during the year were accepted by the Board of Directors.

The Company has been formulated Whistle Blower Policy to establish a Vigil Mechanism for directors
and employees of the Company.

This Policy covers malpractices and events which have taken place, suspected to have taken place,
misuse or abuse of authority, fraud or suspected fraud, violation of company rules, manipulations,
negligence causing danger to public health and safety, misappropriation of monies and other matters or
activity on account of which the interest of the company is affected and formally reported by whistle
blowers. This Policy is intended to encourage and enable employees to raise serious concerns within the
Company prior to seeking resolution outside the company.



The purpose and objective of this Policy is to provide a framework to promote responsible and secure
whistle blowing. It protects the employees wishing to raise a concern about serious irregularities within the
Company. The Company encourages its directors and employees who have genuine concern about
suspected misconduct to come forward and express these concerns without fear of punishment or unfair
treatment. A Vigil (Whistle Blower) mechanism provides a channel to the employees and directors to
report to the management concerns about unethical behaviour, actual or suspected fraud or violation of the
Code of Conduct or policy. The mechanism provides for adequate safeguards against victimization of
employees and directors to avail of the mechanism and also provide for direct access to the Chairperson
of the Audit Committee in exceptional cases.

This policy, however, neither releases employees from their duty of confidentiality in the course of their
work nor can it be used as a route for raising malicious or unfounded allegations against people in authority
and/ or colleagues in general. It is affirmed that no personnel has been denied access to the Audit
Committee.

The Whistle Blower Policy of the Company has been uploaded and can be viewed on the Company’s
website www.amritcorp.com.

In compliance with the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Board has a duly constituted
“Stakeholders Relationship Committee”. This committee ensures speedy disposal of all grievances/
complaints relating to shareholders/investors. The terms of reference of the Committee include the
following:

- To specifically look into complaints received from the shareholders of the Company;

- To oversee the performance of the Registrar and Transfer Agent of the Company;

- To recommend measures for overall improvement in the quality of services to the investors;

The Committee comprised of:

Shri Girish Narain Mehra Chairman Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj Member Non-Independent, Executive Director

Shri Sundeep Aggarwal Member Independent, Non-Executive Director

During the financial year 2017-18, the Stakeholders Relationship Committee met once on
March 30, 2018. The meeting was attended by all the members of the Committee.

Shri Pranab Kumar Das, Company Secretary, is the Compliance Officer of the Company.

As on 31st March, 2017, no complaints and/or requests for dematerialization were pending. During the
year 2017-18, the Company received 11 shareholder complaint which was replied/resolved to the
satisfaction of the investor and no complaints and/or requests for dematerialization were pending as on
31st March, 2018.

All valid requests for share transfers received during the year 2017-18 have been acted upon by the
Company and no transfer is pending.



In compliance with Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013, read along with the applicable Rules thereto
and the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has
duly constituted  consisting of four Non-Executive
Directors with three members, including Chairman, as Independent Directors.

The objective of this Policy is to lay down a framework and set standards in relation to nomination,
remuneration and evaluation of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) and such other senior
management personnel as may be prescribed so as to achieve a balance of merit, experience and skills
in the organization.

The terms of reference of the committee inter alia, include the following:

a) To guide the Board in relation to appointment and removal of Directors, Key Managerial  Personnel
and senior management personnel;

b) To evaluate the performance of the members of the Board as well as Key Managerial Personnel  and
senior management personnel and to provide rewards linked directly to their efforts, performance,
dedication and achievement relating to Company’s operations;

c) To recommend to the Board on remuneration payable to the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel
and senior management personnel;

d) Assessing the independence of Independent Directors;

e) To make recommendation to the Board concerning any matters relating to the continuation in office of
any Director at any time including the suspension or termination of service of the Managing/Whole-
Time Directors, subject to the provision of law and their service contract;

f) To retain, motivate and promote talent and to ensure long term sustainability of talented management
personnel and create competitive advantage;

g) To devise a policy on Board diversity;

h) To develop a succession plan for the Board and to regularly review the plan.

During the financial year 2017-18, the Nomination & Remuneration Committee met twice (2) on
September 19, 2017 and March 30, 2018. The Committee comprised of the following directors of
the Company and the attendance of the members were as under:

Name Position Category No. of
Meetings
held/
Attended

Shri Mohit Satyanand Chairman Independent, Non-Executive Director 2/2

Shri Girish Narain Mehra Member Non-Independent, Non-Executive Director 2/2

Shri Sundeep Aggarwal Member Independent, Non-Executive Director 2/2

Smt. Ketaki Sood Member Independent, Non-Executive Director 2/2



a) The Committee shall identify and ascertain the integrity, qualification, expertise and
experience of the person for appointment as director, KMP or senior management personnel
and recommend to the Board his/her appointment.

b) A person should possess adequate qualifications, expertise and experience for the position
he/she is considered for appointment. The Committee has discretion to decide whether
qualifications, expertise and experience possessed by a person is sufficient/ satisfactory
for the concerned position.

c) The Company shall not appoint or continue the employment of any person as Managing/
Whole-time Director who has attained the age of seventy years, provided that the term of
the person holding this position may be extended beyond the age of seventy years with
the approval of the shareholders by passing a special resolution based on the explanatory
statement annexed to the notice for such motion indicating the justification for extension of
appointment beyond seventy years.

The Company shall appoint or re-appoint any person as its Executive Chairman, Managing
Director or Whole-time Director for a term not exceeding five years at a time. No re-
appointment shall be made earlier than one year before the expiry of term.

- An Independent Director shall hold office for a term up to five consecutive years on the
Board of the Company and will be eligible for re-appointment on passing of a special
resolution by the Company and disclosure of such appointment in the Board’s report.

- No Independent Director shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of upto
a maximum of five years each, but such Independent Director shall be eligible for
appointment after expiry of three years of ceasing to become an Independent Director,
provided that the Independent Director shall not, during the said period of three years
be appointed in or be associated with the Company in any other capacity, either
directly or indirectly.

- At the time of appointment of Independent Director, it should be ensured that number
of Boards on which such Independent Director serves is restricted to seven listed
companies as an Independent Director and three listed companies as an Independent
Director in case such person is serving as a Whole-time Director of a listed company or
such other number as may be prescribed under the Act.

The Committee shall carry out evaluation of performance of every Director, Key Managerial
Personnel and senior management personnel at regular intervals.



Due to reasons for any disqualification mentioned in the Act or under any other applicable Act,
Rules & Regulations thereunder, the Committee may recommend to the Board with reasons
recorded in writing, removal of a Director, Key Managerial Personnel or senior management
personnel subject to the provisions and compliance of the said Act, Rules & Regulations.

The Directors, KMP and senior management personnel shall retire as per the applicable
provisions of the Act and the prevailing policy of the Company. The Board will have the discretion
to retain the Director, KMP and senior management personnel in the same position/remuneration
or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, for the benefit of the Company.

The remuneration/ compensation/ commission etc. to be paid to Managing/Whole-time Directors
shall be governed as per provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under
or any other enactment for the time-being in force.

The non-executive Independent /Non-Independent Director may receive remuneration/
compensation/ commission as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. The amount of
sitting fees shall be subject to ceiling/limits as provided under the Companies Act, 2013 and
Rules made thereunder or any other enactment for the time being in force.

The Nomination & Remuneration Policy of the Company has been uploaded and can be
viewed on the Company’s website www.amritcorp.com.

(Amount in Lakhs)

Naresh Kumar Bajaj - - - -

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 32.43 34.58 - -

Vikram Kumar Bajaj - - - 1.20

Girish Narain Mehra - - - 1.35

K. R. Ramamoorthy - - - 1.65

Sundeep Aggarwal - - - 1.20

Mohit Satyanand - - - 1.65

Sujal Anil Shah - - - 1.95

Ketaki Sood - - - 1.65



The Company has constituted a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Committee as required
under Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013. The terms of reference of the CSR Committee
broadly are as under:

- To frame the CSR Policy and its review from time to time;

- To ensure effective implementation and monitoring of the CSR activities as per approved
policy, plans and budget;

- To ensure compliance with the laws, rules and regulations governing CSR and to periodically
report to the Board of Directors;

During the financial year 2017-18, the CSR Committee met twice (2), on July 17, 2017 and
March 30, 2018. The CSR Committee comprised of the following directors of the Company
and the attendance of the members as under:

Shri Naresh Kumar Bajaj Chairman Non-Independent, Executive 2/1

Shri Sujal Anil Shah Member Independent, Non-Executive 2/2

Smt. Ketaki Sood Member Independent, Non-Executive 2/2

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj Member Non-Independent, Non-Executive 2/2

The CSR Policy of the Company has been uploaded and can be viewed on Company’s website
www.amritcorp.com.

The Company has a risk management programme which comprises of a series of processes,
structures and guidelines to assist the Company to identify, assess, monitor and manage its business
risks, including any material changes to its risk profile.

The objective and scope of the Risk Management Committee broadly comprises:

- Oversight of the risk management performed by the executive management;

- Review of the risk management policy in line with legal requirements and SEBI guidelines;

- Reviewing risks and initiating mitigation actions;

- Defining framework for identification, assessment, monitoring, mitigation and reporting of risks.

The Risk Management Committee comprised of the following directors of the Company and the
attendance of the members as under:

Shri Sujal Anil Shah Chairman Independent, Non-Executive

Shri Ashwini Kumar Bajaj Member Non-Independent, Executive

Shri Sundeep Aggarwal Member Independent, Non-Executive

Shri Vikram Kumar Bajaj Member Non-Independent, Non-Executive

During the financial year 2017-18, no Risk Management Committee meeting was held.



The last three Annual General Meetings of the Company were held as under:

2014-15 07.07.2015 11:00 a.m.

2015-16 26.09.2016 11:00 a.m.

2016-17 19.09.2017 11:00 a.m.

(i) There were no transactions of material nature with the directors or the management or their subsidiaries or
relatives etc. during the year that had potential conflict with the interests of the Company at large. The
details of related party transactions have been reported in the Notes to Accounts.

(ii) The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as notified under Section 133 of
the Companies Act, 2013 and are in conformity, in all material respects, with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India. The selection and application of the appropriate accounting policies and the
judgments/estimates made in the preparation of these financial statements are reasonable and prudent
so as to reflect true and fair view of the state of affairs and results/operations of the Company.

(iii) The Company has been formulated Whistle Blower Policy to establish a Vigil Mechanism for directors
and employees of the Company and the details are provided in point no. 3 (a) of this report.

(iv) The Company has well-defined Risk Management Policies for each of the businesses, duly approved
by the Board, which are periodically reviewed to ensure that the executive management controls risk by
means of a properly defined framework.

(v) The Company has not raised any funds from the capital market (public/rights/preferential issues etc.)
during the financial year under review.

(vi) Disclosure under the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 in
respect of unclaimed shares:

The details in respect of equity shares lying in “
” are as follows:

1. No. of Shareholders and Shares outstanding
as at 31.03.2017.

2. Requests received from the shareholders
and subsequently transfer of shares from the
suspense account.

3 Shares Transferred to IEPF

4. No. of Shareholders and Shares outstanding
as at 31.03.2018.

The voting rights on the shares outstanding in the suspense account as on March 31, 2018 shall remain
frozen till the rightful owner of such shares claims these shares.

Choudhary Bhawan,
‘E’ Block (near Jain Mandir),

Kavi Nagar, Ghaziabad-201 002 (U.P.)



Wherever the shareholders have claimed the shares, after proper verification, the share certificates were
dispatched to them or credited the shares to the respective beneficiary account.

(vii) Disclosure in respect of shares transferred to Investor Education & Protection Fund (IEPF) pursuant to
Section 124(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

During the year, below mentioned shares had been transferred to IEPF:

1. 2008-09

2. 2009-10

(viii) There was no instance of non-compliance of any matter relating to the capital markets by the
Company. No penalties or strictures have been imposed on the Company by the stock exchanges,
SEBI or any other statutory authorities on any matter relating to the capital market during the last three
years.

(ix) The Company is complying with all mandatory requirements of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. In particular complying with corporate governance
requirements specified in regulation 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of regulation 46 (2) of SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 has been made in this report.

The Quarterly, Half Yearly and Annual Results are communicated to the BSE Limited, where the Company’s
shares are listed as soon as they are approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the
Company. Further, the quarterly and half-yearly results are published in leading newspapers such as ‘Financial
Express’ (English) and ‘Jansatta’ (Hindi). The results are not sent individually to the shareholders. The financial
results are also displayed on the web-site of the Company at .

Pursuant to the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company
has maintained website namely  providing the basic information about the Company
such as details of our business, financial information, shareholding pattern, compliance with corporate governance,
contact information of the designated officials of the Company who are responsible for assisting and handling
investor grievances, etc. The information provided on the website is being updated regularly.

The Company has an Investor Grievance Cell in the Share Department to redress the grievances/queries of
the shareholders. In order to redress shareholders’ queries and grievances, the Company has a separate e-
mail ID 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of the Directors’ Report.

A certificate has been obtained from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance with the provisions
relating to Corporate Governance laid-down in SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015. The same is annexed to this report.

The CMD & CEO and the CFO have issued certificate pursuant to regulation 17 (8) of the SEBI (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 certifying that the financial statements do not



contain any untrue statements and these statements represent a true and fair view of the Companys’ affair. The
said certificate is annexed and forms part of the Annual Report.



Date September 14, 2018

Time 11:00 a.m.

Venue Choudhary Bhawan, ‘E’ Block (near Jain Mandir), Kavi Nagar,
Ghaziabad-201 002 (U.P.)



Financial results for Quarter ended 30.06.2018 First week of August, 2018

Financial results for Quarter ended 30.09.2018 First week of November, 2018

Financial results for Quarter ended 31.12.2018 First week of February, 2019

Financial results for Quarter/year ended 31.03.2019 Last week of May, 2019

Book Closure  Date 8th September, 2018 to 14th
September, 2018 (both days inclusive)



Dividend, if any, declared in the next AGM will be paid on or after 14th September, 2018 but before the
statutory time limit of 30 days from the date of declaration.



Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai – 400 001

The Company has already paid annual listing fee for the year 2018-19 to the stock exchange.



 BSE Limited, Mumbai : 507525

 Demat ISIN in NSDL and CDSL for equity shares : INE866E01026





The monthly high/low quotations of the equity shares traded at Stock Exchange, Mumbai and BSE Sensex
during the financial year 2017-18 are given below:

April, 2017       601.00       448.50    30,184.22    29,241.48

May, 2017       862.00       526.20    31,255.28    29,804.12

June, 2017       713.90       582.65    31,522.87    30,680.66

July, 2017       676.05       585.10    32,672.66    31,017.11

August, 2017       710.00       600.00    32,686.48    31,128.02

September, 2017       900.00       675.00    32,524.11    31,081.83

October, 2017    1,668.00       857.00    33,340.17    31,440.48

November, 2017    1,435.90    1,000.00    33,865.95    32,683.59

December, 2017    1,310.00    1,100.00    34,137.97    32,565.16

January, 2018    1,302.00    1,140.00    36,443.98    33,703.37

February, 2018    1,380.00    1,187.50    36,256.83    33,482.81

March, 2018    1,405.00    1,195.00    34,278.63    32,483.84

Source: BSE website: 


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

The Company has appointed M/s MAS Services Ltd., New Delhi as the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent for
handling both physical share registry work and demat share registry work having their office at:

T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,
Phase - II,
New Delhi - 110 020
Ph:- 011-26387281/82/83
Fax:- 011-26387384
email:- info@masserv.com
website : www.masserv.com



The transfers are normally processed within a period of 15 days from the date of receipt if the documents are
complete in all respects. Requests for dematerialization of shares are processed and confirmation is given to
the respective depositories i.e. National Securities Depository Ltd. (NSDL) and Central Depsoitory Services
(India) Ltd. (CDSL) within 15 days. The connectivity with NSDL & CDSL is maintained through M/s MAS
Services Ltd. The Shareholders have the option to open account with any of the depository participants
registered with CDSL and NSDL. In the case of off-market/private transactions involving transfer of shares in
physical form, SEBI has made mandatory for both the transferor(s) and transferee(s) to furnish copy of PAN
card to the company/RTA. The shareholders/investors are advised to comply with the same while filing
transfer documents with the company/RTA.



Individuals/HUF 12 6,64,317 20.67

Bodies Corporate 5 17,41,217 54.19

Institutions/Banks 4 408 0.01

Bodies Corporate 54 4,215 0.13

Individuals 9,227 7,29,196 22.70

NBFC’s registered with RBI 2 422 0.01

NRIs/OBCs 87 1,401 0.04

Clearing members 7 1,009 0.03

Others (Pakistani Shareholder) 1 3,328 0.11

Shares held with IEPF 2 63,863 1.99

Unclaimed Shares 1 3,855 0.12



1 to 5,000 9,858 99.34 1,38,151 4.30

5,001-10,000 27 0.27 20,433 0.63

10,001-20,000 10 0.10 13,726 0.43

20,001-30,000 4 0.04 10,224 0.32

30,001-40,000 2 0.02 7,669 0.24

40,001-50,000 2 0.02 9,168 0.29

50,001-1,00,000 — — — —

1,00,001 and above 21 0.21 30,13,860 93.79

*There is difference of 522 no. of shareholders between no. of shareholders as per shareholding pattern
& no. of shareholders as per distribution schedule because pursuant to SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/
CFD/CMD/CIR/P/2017/128 dated 19.12.2017, the shareholding of the public shareholders has to be
consolidated on the basis of PAN while preparing the shareholding pattern of the Company.



The Company has entered into an agreement with NSDL and CDSL to offer depository services to the
shareholders. As on March 31, 2018, 31,33,310 equity shares equivalent to 97.51 % of the shares of the
Company have been dematerialized. All the shares held by the promoters of the Company are in dematerialized
form.



A qualified practicing Company Secretary carried out a Reconciliation of Share Capital Audit to reconcile the
total admitted capital with NSDL and CDSL and the total issued and listed capital. The Secretarial Audit Report
confirms that the total issued / paid up capital is in agreement with the total number of shares in physical form
and the total number of dematerialized shares held with NSDL and CDSL.



Not Applicable



Amrit Nagar,
G. T. Road,
Ghaziabad – 201 009 (U.P.)





(a) Regd. Office:

CM/28 (First Floor), Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G.T. Road,

Ghaziabad – 201 009 (U.P.)

Tel. No.0120-2866880/2866886,

Fax No. 0120-2866888

Email : 

Website: 

(b) Corporate Office:

A-95, Sector – 65,

Noida – 201 309 (U.P)

Tel: 0120-4506900,

Fax:  0120-4506910

E-mail address: 

(c) Registrar & Share Transfer Agent:

T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area,

Phase - II, New Delhi - 110 020

Ph: 011-26387281/82/83

Fax: 011-26387384

email:- info@masserv.com

Website: www.masserv.com

Shareholders holding shares in electronic mode should address all their correspondence to their respective
Depository Participants.



We have examined the compliance of the conditions of Corporate Governance by Amrit Corp. Limited for the
year ended March 31, 2018 as stipulated in regulations Part C of the Schedule V of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

The compliance of regulations of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our examination
was limited to procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of
the conditions of Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements
of the Company.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and explanations given to us, we certify that the Company has
complied with the regulations of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the above-mentioned Listing Regulations.

We state that in respect of investor grievances received during the year ended March 31, 2018, no investor
grievances are pending against the Company for a period exceeding one month as per records maintained by the
Company.

We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the
efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For 
Chartered Accountants

Firm’s Registration No. 011393N

Place : Noida Partner
Date  : August 02, 2018 M.No.- 521860



I hereby declare that all the Directors and Senior Management Personnel have confirmed compliance with
the Code of Conduct as adopted by the Company.

Place : Noida ( )
Date : August 02, 2018 Chairman & Managing Director & CEO

The Board of Directors

We have reviewed the financial statements and the cash flow statement of  for the year
ended 31st March, 2018 and that to the best of our knowledge and belief, we state that;

(a) (i) these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that may be misleading;

(ii) these statements present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with current
accounting standards, applicable laws and regulations.

(b) there are, to the best of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year which are fraudulent, illegal or in violation of the Company’s code of conduct.

(c) we accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting. We have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and
have disclosed to the Auditors and the Audit Committee, deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal
controls, if any, of which we are aware and steps taken or proposed to be taken for rectifying these deficiencies.

(d) we have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee:

(i) significant changes, if any, in the internal control over financial reporting during the year.

(ii) significant changes, if any, in accounting policies made during the year and that the same have been
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements; and

(iii)  instances of significant fraud of which we have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the
management or an employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over
financial reporting.

Yours sincerely,

Chief Financial Officer Chairman & Managing Director & CEO

Place : Noida
Date : August 02, 2018



ANNEXURE “B” TO BOARD’S REPORT

1.

We strongly believe in sustainable development which is beneficial for the society at large. Recognizing that
business enterprises are economic organs of society and draw on societal resources, it is our co-extensive
responsibility to pay back in return to society in terms of helping needy people, keeping the environment clean
and safe for the society by adhering to the best industrial practices and adopting best technology. It is our core
responsibility to practice the corporate values through commitment to grow in socially and environmentally
responsible way while meeting the interest of our stake-holders.

The key objectives of our CSR policy are:

- Define what CSR means to us and the approach to be adopted to achieve our goals;

- Define the kind of projects that will come under the ambit of CSR;

- Identify broad areas of intervention in which the Company will undertake projects;

- Serve as a guiding document to help execute and monitor CSR projects;

- Elucidate criteria for partner implementation agencies;

- Explain the manner in which the surpluses from CSR projects will be treated.

The CSR Policy of the Company is available on the website of the Company at www.amritcorp.com.

(iii) To pursue these objectives we will continue to

- Work actively in areas of skill development and language training for employability, livelihoods and income
generation, preventive health and sanitation, waste resource management and water conservation and also
contribute directly to Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund, National Mission for Clean Ganga and Swachh
Bharat Kosh;

- Uphold and promote the principles of inclusive growth and equitable development;

- Collaborate with like minded bodies like government, voluntary organisations and other institutions in pursuit
of our goals;

- Interact regularly with stakeholders, review and publicly report our CSR initiatives.

2.

Mr. N. K. Bajaj, Chairman

Mr. Sujal Anil Shah, Member

Mrs. Ketaki Sood, Member

Mr. V. K. Bajaj, Member

3.

Average Net Profit  -  Rs. 1,156.83 lakhs

4.

The Company is required to spend towards CSR  -  Rs. 23.14 lakhs

5.

(a) Total amount spent in financial year 2017-18  -  Rs. 23.50 lakhs

(b) Amount unspent, if any - Nil



1 Scholarships for
education, skill
development/
enhancement, language
training and presentation
skills with a view to make
poor and neglected
children employable

2 Contribution to Swachh
Bharat Kosh

3 Contr ibut ion to Clean
Ganga Fund for
rejuvenation of river Ganga

4 Contribution to the Prime
Minister’s National Relief
Fund

5 (i) Renewable Energy

(ii) Education & Skill
Development

(iii) Women livelihood
projects

(iv) Nutrition/Health
camps etc.

Literacy

Sanitation

Conservation of
natural resources

Prime Minister’s
National Relief
Fund

Environmental
Sustainability

Literacy

Women
empowerment

Healthcare

NCR Region –
Delhi (NCT of
Delhi),
Ghaziabad
(UP), Gurgaon
& Faridabad
(Haryana)

All India

All India

All India

NCR Region –
Delhi (NCT of
Delhi),
Ghaziabad
(UP), Gurgaon
& Faridabad
(Haryana)

16.00 10.00 10.00

0.50 1.00 1.00

0.50 1.00 1.00

0.50 1.00 1.00

6.00 10.50 10.50

(i) Rs. 8.00 lakhs
Through Sadbhavana
Trust

(ii) Rs. 2.00 lakhs
Through Salaam
Balak Trust

Rs. 1.00 lakhs
Through Swachh
Bharat Kosh set  up
by the Central Govt.

Rs. 1.00 lakhs -
Through Clean
Ganga Fund set up
by the Central Govt.

Rs. 1.00 lakhs -
Through Prime
Minister’s National
Relief Fund set up
by the Central Govt.

Rs. 10.50 lakhs -
Through own CSR
arm, namely, Amrit
CSR Foundation

(i) Sadbhavana Trust, New Delhi;

(ii) Salaam Balak Trust, New Delhi;

(iii) Swachh Bharat Kosh, Govt. of India, New Delhi;

(iv) Clean Ganga Fund, Govt. of India, New Delhi;

(v ) Prime Minister’s National Relief Fund, Govt. of India; and

(vi) Amrit CSR Foundation, Ghaziabad.

7. In case the company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years or
any part thereof, the company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report  -

 NOT APPLICABLE

The CSR Committee confirms that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is in compliance with CSR objectives
and Policy of the Company.

Managing Director Chairman – CSR Committee

6.



ANNEXURE “C” TO BOARD’S REPORT

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule No. 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members
Amrit Corp. Limited
CIN: L15141UP1940PLC000946
CM-28, First Floor,
Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G. T. Road,

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence
to good corporate practices by Amrit Corp. Limited (hereinafter called ”). The secretarial audit was
conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts / statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.

Based on our verification of the Amrit Corp. Limited’s books, papers, minute  books, forms and returns filed and
other records maintained by the company and also the information provided by the company, its officers, agents
and authorised representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the
company has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on March 31, 2018 complied with
the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the company has proper Board - Processes and Compliance
– Mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the
Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2018 according to the provisions of:

(i) The Companies Act, 2013  and rules made thereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956  and the rules made thereunder;

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and bye - laws framed thereunder;

(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the Rules and Regulations made thereunder to the extent
of Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment, and External Commercial Borrowings;

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act,
1992 :

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015;

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2009; 



(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014; 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008;

(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrar to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations,
1993 regarding Companies Act and dealing with client; 

;

(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares)   Regulations, 2009; 
and

(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

(vi) Food Safety and Standards Act, 2006;

(vii) Employees Provident Fund and Miscellaneous Provisions Act, 1952;

(viii) Employees State Insurance Act, 1948;

(ix) Environment Protection Act, 1986 and other Environmental Laws;

(x) Factories Act, 1948;

(xi) Indian Contract Act, 1872;

(xii) Indian Stamp Act, 1999;

(xiii) Industrial Dispute Act, 1947;

(xiv) Minimum Wages Act, 1948;

(xv) Negotiable Instrument Act, 1881;

(xvi) Payment of Bonus Act, 1965;

(xvii) Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972;

(xviii) Payment of Wages Act, 1936;

(xix) Sexual Harassment of Women at Work Place (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013

(xx) Apprentices Act, 1961;

(xxi) Employment Exchange (Compulsory Notification of Vacancies) Act, 1959;

(xxii) Contract Labour (Regulation & Abolition) Act, 1970;

(xxiii) Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946 and other applicable labour laws.

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standards with respect to Meetings of Board of Directors (SS-1) and General Meetings (SS-2)
issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India;



(ii) SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.

During the period under review the company has complies with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards etc. mentioned above.

We further report that the compliance by the Company of applicable fiscal laws, such as direct and indirect laws, has
not been reviewed in this audit since the same have been subject to review by the statutory auditors.

We further report that:

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors,
Non-Executive Directors and Independent Directors. The Changes in the composition of the Board of Directors
that took place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act;

 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on
agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further
information and clarification on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the
meeting; and

 Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members’ views are captured and recorded as part of
the minutes.

We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.

We further report that during the audit period, there were no instances of :-

(i) Public / Rights / Preferential Issue of Shares / Debenture / Sweat Equity;

(ii) Redemption / Buy-back of Securities;

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuant to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv) Merger / Amalgamation / Reconstruction etc.;

(v) Foreign Technical Collaborations.

PARTNER

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Place  : Delhi       FCS NO. 3616, C. P. NO. 3169
Dated : June 4, 2018

Note : This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as an  and forms an
integral part of this report.



“Annexure-A”

The Members
Amrit Corp. Limited
CIN :L15141UP1940PLC000946
CM-28, First Floor,
Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G. T. Road,

We report that:

a) Maintenance of secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.

b) We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

c) We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of the financial statements of the Company.

d) We have obtained the management representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations,
wherever required.

e) The compliance of the provisions of the corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is
the responsibility of the management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on a
random test basis.

f) The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the company nor of the efficacy
or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

PARTNER

COMPANY SECRETARIES
Place  : Delhi       FCS NO. 3616, C. P. NO. 3169
Dated : June 4, 2018



ANNEXURE “D” TO BOARD’S REPORT

(a) Energy conservation has been an important thrust area for the Company and is continuously monitored.
The adoption of energy conservation measures has helped the Company in reduction of cost and
reduced machine down-time.

(b) Energy conservation is an ongoing process and new areas are continuously identified and suitable
investments are made, wherever necessary. The Company has switched to briquettes as fuel in Boiler
as against pet coke in the past to reduce the pollution level.

(c) Various on-going measures for conservation of energy include (i) use of energy efficient lighting and better
use of natural lighting, (ii) reduction of energy loss, and (iii) replacement of outdated energy intensive
equipment.

(d) Total energy consumption and energy consumption per unit of production is given in the table below:



2016-17

- Unit (lacs Kwh) 15.52

-  Total amount (Rs. lakhs) 132.32

-  Rate per Unit (Rs.) 8.53

- Unit (lacs Kwh) 1.41

-  Unit/Ltr. of Diesel Oil 2.97

-  Cost per Unit (Rs.) 15.79

- Unit (lacs Kwh) 1.12

Total quantity (in tonnes) 770.00

Total cost (Rs.) 73.92

Average rate/kg. (Rs.) 9.60

Total quantity (in K.L.) -

Total cost (Rs.) -

Average rate/Ltr. (Rs.) -

Total quantity (in tones) -

Total cost (Lakhs) -

Average rate/kg. (Rs.) -

Total quantity (in K.L.) -

Total cost (Rs/Lakhs.) -

Average rate (Rs./Ltr.) -

Production (K.L.) 7,047.00

Electricity/K.L. (Kwh) 256.18

Others - -



(a) The   Company   carries out research and development in several areas including material & process
developments towards efficiency improvements, quality improvements, waste reduction etc. Apart from
process improvements, the research and development also aims at finding equivalent substitutes of
various inputs and packaging materials to have cost savings without compromising quality.

(b) The Company has derived benefits of product diversification, cost reduction and better quality as a result
of the above efforts.

(c) The research and development is an on-going exercise and suitable efforts will continue to be made in
future.

(d) The  expenditure on R & D has been as follows:

(Rs. in lakhs)

2016-17

(i) Capital 0.87

(ii) Recurring 11.69

(iii) Total 12.56

(iv) Total R&D expenditure as a percentage of turnover 0.26%

The Company has not imported any technology for its products.

Particulars with regard to foreign exchange earnings & outgo appear on page 127 of the Annual Report and
Accounts.

For and on behalf of the Board

Noida
August 02, 2018 Chairman & Managing Director



ANNEXURE “E” TO BOARD’S REPORT

as on the financial year ended on 

[Pursuant to Section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 12(1) of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014]

i) CIN :

ii) Registration Date : 29.03.1940

iii) Name of the Company :

iv) Category / Sub-Category of : Public Company
the Company

v) Address of the Registered : CM-28 (First Floor), Gagan Enclave, Amrit Nagar, G T Road,
office and contact details Ghaziabad - 201009 (UP) Tel. No.: 0120-2866880

vi) Whether listed company : Yes

vii) Name, Address and Contact :
details of Registrar and T-34, 2nd Floor, Okhla Industrial Area, Phase-II, New Delhi-20
Transfer Agent, if any Tel. No.: 011-26387281/82/83  Fax No.: 011-26387384

All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:

1. Flavoured Milk, Cream, Milk and Mixes 10509 98.55%

NIL



Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
total total

Shares Shares

a. Individual/ HUF 6,64,317 – 6,64,317 20.67
b. Central Govt – – – –
c. State Govt(s) – – – –
d. Bodies Corp. 17,41,217 – 17,41,217 54.19
e. Banks / FI – – – –
f. Any Other – – – –

24,05,534 – 24,05,534 74.86

a. NRIs-Individuals – – – –
b. Other-Individuals – – – –
c. Bodies Corp. – – – –
d. Banks / FI – – – –
e. Any Other – – – –

– – – –

24,05,534 – 24,05,534 74.86

a. Mutual Funds 125 – 125 0.00
b. Banks/FI – 321 321 0.01
c. Central Govt. – – – –
d. State Govt (s) – – – –
e. Venture Capital

Funds – – – –
f. Insurance

Companies – – – –
g. FIIs – – – –
h. Foreign Venture

Capital Funds – – – –
i. Others (specify) – – – –

125 321 446 0.01

a. Bodies Corp.
i. Indian 5,741 390 6,131 0.19
ii. Overseas – – – –

b. Individuals
i. Individual

share holders
holding nominal
share capital
upto Rs.1 lakh 98,466 1,09,349 2,07,815 6.47

ii. Individual
shareholders
holding nominal
sharecapital in
excess of Rs
1lakh 5,48,456 – 5,48,456 17.07



Demat Physical Total % of Demat Physical Total % of
total total

Shares Shares

c. Others
i. NRI 656 2,488 3,144 0.10
ii. Pakistani

Shareholders 3,328 – 3,328 0.10
iii. Clearing Members 472 – 472 0.01
iv. IEPF – – – –
v. Unclaimed

Suspense A/c 37,905 – 37,905 1.18

6,95,024 1,12,227 8,07,251 25.12

6,95,149 1,12,548 8,07,697 25.14

– – – –

31,00,683 1,12,548 32,13,231 100.00

1. Naresh Kumar Bajaj 57,834 1.80 –

2. Navjyoti Residency Pvt Ltd 1,68,699 5.25 –

3. A K Bajaj Investment Pvt Ltd 1,19,226 3.71 –

4. V K Bajaj Investment Pvt Ltd 56,777 1.77 –

5. Amrit Agro Industries Limited 2,67,817 8.33 –

6. Arnav Bajaj 3,814 0.12 –

7. Varun Bajaj 2,437 0.08 –

8. Sneha Jatia 13,326 0.41 –

9. Sunita  Mor 1,262 0.04 –

10. Radhika  Jatia 13,659 0.42 –

11. Manvendra  Mor 250 0.01 –

12. Vikram Kumar Bajaj 1,56,400 4.87 –

13. Jaya Bajaj 1,28,655 4.00 –

14. Ashwini Kumar Bajaj 1,56,238 4.86 –

15. Anuradha Gupta 1,625 0.05 –

16. Vandana Bajaj 1,28,817 4.01 –

17. Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt. Ltd. 11,28,698 35.13 –

24,05,534 74.86 –



At the beginning of the year

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in promoters
 Share holding during the year specifying the
reasons for increase / (decrease) (e.g. allotment /
transfer / bonus/ sweat equity, etc.)

No Change in the Promotors Shareholding during the year

1. Dhirendra B Sanghavi 1,86,151 5.79 1,63,574 5.09

2. Usha B Sanghavi 1,81,844 5.66 1,19,719 3.73

3. Bhupendra G Sanghavi 1,20,571 3.75 1,20,389 3.75

4. Bhupendra G Sanghavi (HUF) 46,390 1.44 — —

5. Madhu Arora 13,500 0.42 13,500 0.42

6. Kamla Mehra 4,715 0.15 — —

7. Mahesh Ratra 4,168 0.13 4,168 0.13

8. Bhavini D Sanghavi 3,726 0.12 — —

9. Ashok Kumar Garg 3,366 0.10 1,185 0.04

10. Anu Garg 2,925 0.09 2,925 0.09

11. Dhirajlal V Shah — — 68,585 2.13

12. Shirish Chimanbhai Patel 362 0.01 33,403 1.04

13. Vikram Dhirajlal Shah — — 20,000 0.62

14. Ketki Dhirajlal Shah — — 15,000 0.47

15. Zarana Karan Arora — — 5,000 0.16



Chairman & Managing Director

At the beginning of the year 57,834 1.80 57,834 1.80

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

Managing Director

At the beginning of the year 1,56,238 4.86 1,56,238 4.86

Date wise Increase /(Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.)        – – – –

Director

At the beginning of the year 1,56,400 4.87 1,56,400 4.87

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) – – – –



Director

At the beginning of the year 500 0.01 500 0.01

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons for
increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) – – – –

Director

At the beginning of the year 500 0.01 500 0.01

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

Director

At the beginning of the year 500 0.01 500 0.01

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —



Director

At the beginning of the year 500 0.01 500 0.01

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

Director

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

Director

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —



CFO

At the beginning of the year — — — —

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) — — — —

Company Secretary

At the beginning of the year – – – –

Date wise Increase / (Decrease) in
Share holding during
the year specifying the reasons
for increase / (decrease)
(e.g. allotment / transfer / bonus/
sweat equity, etc.) – – – –



i) Principal Amount 4.05 – 3,072.92

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – 0.65 – 0.65

Addition 7,883.63 0.05 – 7,883.68
Reduction 9,399.69 – – 9,399.69

–

i) Principal Amount 1,552.81 4.10 – 1,556.91

ii) Interest due but not paid – – – –

iii) Interest accrued but not due – 0.07 – 0.07



 

Chairman & Managing Director
Managing Director

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions — 55.78 55.78

contained in section 17(1) of
the Income-tax Act, 1961

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) — 11.23 11.23
Income-tax Act, 1961

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under — — —
section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961

2. Stock Option — — —

3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commission·

As a % of profit· — — —

 Others, specify — — —

5. Others — — —

Mr. K. R. Mr. Mohit Mr. Sundeep Mr. Sujal Mrs. Ketaki
Ramamoorthy Satyanand Aggarwal Anil Shah Sood

1.  Fee for attending
Board/Committee
Meetings 1.65 1.65 1.20 1.95 1.65 8.10

 Commission – – – – – –

 Others, please – – – – – –
specify



Mr. V. K. Bajaj Mr. G. N. Mehra

2.  Fee for attending Board/
Committee Meetings 1.20 1.35 2.55

 Commission — — —

 Others, please specify — — —

Company Secretary CFO

1. Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions

contained in section 17(1)
of the Income-tax Act, 1961 11.64 13.44 25.08

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2)
Income-tax Act, 1961 — — —

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under
section 17(3) Income-tax
Act, 1961 — — —

2. Stock Option — — —

3. Sweat Equity — — —

4. Commission

 As a % of profit — — —
 Others, specify — — —

5. Others, please specify — — —



Type Section of the Brief Description Details of Penalty/ Authority Appeal
Companies Act Punishment/ (RD/ NCLT/ made, if any

Compounding fees Court)
imposed

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding

Penalty

Punishment None

Compounding



ANNEXURE “F” TO BOARD’S REPORT

(i) The ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median employee’s remuneration for the financial
year and such other details as prescribed is as given below:

Naresh Kumar Bajaj (Chairman & Managing Director) – without remuneration Nil

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj (Managing Director) 24:1

For this purpose, sitting fees paid to the directors has not been considered as remuneration.

(ii) The percentage increase in remuneration of each Director, Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer,
Company Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj Managing Director 16.90%

Badri Prasad Maheshwari Chief Financial Officer 10.73%

Pranab Kumar Das Company Secretary 10.59%

(iii) The percentage increase in the median remuneration of employees in the financial year : 2.66%

(iv) The number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company: 117

(v) The explanation on the relationship between average increase in remuneration and company performance:

The increase in remuneration is in line with the performance and reward philosophy/HR policies of the
Company.

(vi) Comparison of the remuneration of the Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) against the performance of the
company:

Except for the Managing Director, the increase in remuneration of the other KMP are in line with the
performance and reward philosophy/HR policies of the Company.

(vii) Variations in the market capitalization of the company, price earning ratio as at the closing date of the
current financial year and previous financial year and percentage increase or decrease in the market quotations
of the shares of the company in comparison to the rate at which the company came out with the last public
offer:

31.03.2017 32,13,231 470.70 37.56 12.53 15,124.68

31.03.2018 32,13,231 1,195.00 51.43 23.24 38,398.11

Increase/ (Decrease) - 724.30 13.87 10.71 23,273.46

% of Increase/ (Decrease) - 153.88 36.93 85.47 153.88

Market quotations of the shares of the Company in comparison to the rate at which the Company came out with
the last public offer.



The equity shares of the Company were initially listed on BSE Ltd. in the year 1941. The last public offer of
the equity shares was made in the year 1993 by way of Rights Issue to the existing equity shareholders in the
ratio of 1:1 at a price of Rs.14/- per equity share of Rs.10/-. As on 31st March, 2018, the market quotation of

the Company’s share price (closing price) was Rs. 1,195.00 i.e. increase of 8436%.

(viii) Average percentile increase already made in the salaries of employees other than the managerial personnel
in the last financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase in the managerial remuneration and
justification thereof and any exceptional circumstances for increase in the managerial remuneration:

There is only one Whole Time Director i.e. Managing Director. Average increase in remuneration for employees
other than Managerial Personnel is 7.06%, which is in line with the reward philosophy and the HR policies of
the Company.

(ix) Comparison of the each remuneration of the KMP against the performance of the Company;

Ashwini Kumar Bajaj, Managing Director 67.01

Badri Prasad Maheshwari, Chief Financial Officer 13.44 1,652.62

Pranab Kumar Das, Company Secretary 11.44

(x) The key parameters for any variable component of remuneration availed by the directors:

There is no variable component in the remuneration of Shri A.K. Bajaj, Managing Director.

(xi) The ratio of the remuneration of the highest paid director to that of the employees who are not directors
but receive remuneration in excess of the highest paid director during the year:  Not Applicable

(xii) If remuneration is as per the remuneration policy of the Company: Yes

For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Noida ( )
Date : August 02, 2018 Chairman & Managing Director



To the Members of

We have audited the accompanying  Ind-AS financial
statements of (“the Company”),
which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st  March, 2018,
and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Cash Flow Statement and
the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended,
and a summary of the significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information.

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the
matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these
Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity
of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these Ind
AS financial statements based on our audit. In conducting
our audit, we have taken into account the provisions of the
Act, the accounting and auditing standards and matters
which are required to be included in the audit report under
the provisions of the Act and the Rules made there under
and  the order issued under section 143 (11) of the Act. We
conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in
accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under
Section 143(10) of the Act. Those Standards require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the Ind AS financial statements are free from material
misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit
evidence about the amounts and the disclosures in the Ind
AS financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal financial
control relevant to the Company’s preparation of the Ind
AS financial statements that give a true and fair view in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of the accounting estimates made by the
Company’s Directors, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the Ind AS financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Ind AS financial statements give the information required
by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as
at 31st March, 2018, and its profit, total comprehensive
income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the
year ended on that date.

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in
the   statement on the matters specified
in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent
applicable.

2. As required by Section 143 (3) of the Companies Act,
2013, we report that:

a. we have sought and obtained all the information
and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the
purposes of our audit.

b . in our opinion proper books of account as required
by law have been kept by the Company so far



as it appears from our examination of those
books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and
Loss including Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of
Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are
in agreement with the books of account.;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial
statements comply with the Indian Accounting
Standards prescribed under Section 133 of the
Act.;

e. on the basis of the written representations
received from the directors as on 31st March, 2018
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none
of the directors is disqualified as on 31st March,
2018 from being appointed as a director in terms
of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal
financial controls over financial reporting of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of
such controls, refer to our separate Report in

’; and

g. with respect to the other matters to be included
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules,
2014, in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations
given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact
of pending lit igations on its f inancial
position in its Ind AS financial statements –
Refer Note 33 to the Ind AS financial
statements;

ii. The Company has made necessary
provision in its Ind AS financial statements
under the applicable law or Indian
accounting standards, wherever required;

iii. There has been no delay in transferring
amounts, required to be transferred, to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by
the Company.

Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 011393N

Place : Noida Partner
Date  : 23rd  May, 2018 Membership No. 521860

1. (a) The company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
details and situation of fixed assets.

(b) The company has a phased programme of
physical verification of its fixed assets which, in
our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the
size of the company and the nature of its assets.
In accordance with such programme, the
management has physically verified its fixed
assets during the year and no material
discrepancies were noticed by them.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties are held
in the name of the company.

2. According to the information and explanations
given to us, physical verification of inventories
is conducted by the management at periodic
intervals. The procedures followed by the
company for physical verification of inventories
are reasonable and adequate in relation to the
size of the company and the nature of its
business. The company is maintaining proper
records of inventory and no material discrepancies
were noticed on physical verification as compared
to book records.

3. The Company has not granted any loans,
secured or unsecured to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in
the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act  2013. Consequently sub-
clauses 3 (a), (b) & (c) of this clause are not
applicable.

4. The Company has not made any transaction in
respect of loans covered under section 185 of
the Companies Act 2013. In respect of loans,
investments, guarantees and security covered
under section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013,
the provisions of the said section 186 have been
duly complied.

5. The Company has not accepted any deposits
from the public and consequently, the directives
issued by Reserve Bank of India, the provisions
of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act, 2013
and rules framed there under are not applicable.
Accordingly rest of clause is not applicable on
the Company.

6. In accordance with the information given by the
management the maintenance of cost records has



We have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of AMRIT CORP. LIMITED (“the Company”) as
of March 31, 2018 in conjunction with our audit of the Ind

AS financial statements of the Company for the year ended
on that date.

The Company ’s management is responsib le for
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on internal policies & procedures, accounting records
and essential components on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company as

per Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the ICAI. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and

maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s

not been prescribed by the Central Government
under section 148 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013.

7. (a) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on the basis of our examination
of the books of account, the company is regular
in depositing the undisputed statutory dues
including provident fund, employees’ state
insurance, income tax, GST, sales tax, duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues as applicable with
the appropriate authorities. According to the
information and explanations given to us, there
was no undisputed amounts payable in respect
of the above dues which were outstanding as at
31st March, 2018 for a period of more than six
months from the date of their becoming payable.

(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the  amounts payable in respect of
income tax, sales tax, service tax,  duty of
customs, duty of excise, value added tax, cess
and any other statutory dues which have not
been deposited on account of any disputes, are
as under

Income Withdrawal of 248.61 High Court
Tax investment Allahabad
Act, 1961 Allowance & other

and other Appellate
disallowances Authorities

8. The company has not defaulted during the year, in
repayment of any loans or borrowing to a financial
institution, bank, Government or dues to debenture
holders.

9. According to the information and explanations given
to us, during the year the Company has raised term
loans. The aforesaid term loans were applied for the
purposes for which they are raised.

10. According to the information and explanations given
to us, no fraud by the company or no fraud by the
Company’s officers or employees has been noticed
or reported during the year.

11. The company has paid managerial remuneration as
per provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Companies Act, 2013.

12. The company is not a Nidhi Company and hence
clause 3 (xii) is not applicable.

13. The transactions with the related parties made by the
Company are in compliance with sections 177 and
188 of Companies Act 2013 where applicable and the

details have been disclosed in the Ind AS Financial
Statements, as required by the applicable India
Accounting Standards.

14. The company has not made any preferential allotment
or private placement of shares or fully or partly
convertible debentures during the year and hence
clause 3 (xiv) is not applicable.

15. During the year, the company has not entered
into any non- cash transactions with directors
or persons connected with him and hence provision
of section 192 of Companies Act 2013 is not
applicable.

16. The company is not required to register under section
45- IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 011393N

Place : Noida Partner
Date  : August 02, 2018 Membership No. 521860



policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detect ion of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely

preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Companies Act, 2013.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal financial controls over financial reporting
based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance

with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”)
and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and

prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act,
2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require

that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial

reporting was established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit

evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting
included obtaining an understanding of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a

material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on

the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system

over financial reporting.

A company’s internal financial control over financial reporting
is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the

preparation of Ind AS financial statements for external

purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company’s internal financial control over

financial reporting includes those policies and procedures
that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are
recorded as necessary to permit preparation of Ind AS

financial statements in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures
of the company are being made only in accordance with

authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable  assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition,

use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial
controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of

collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and
not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the

internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial
control over financial reporting may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
an adequate internal financial controls system over
financial reporting and such internal financial controls over

financial reporting were operating effectively as at March
31, 2018, based on the Company’s internal policies &
procedures and accounting records and implementation of

essential components on the internal controls over financial
reporting.

Chartered Accountants
Firms Registration No. 011393N

Place : Noida Partner
Date  : 23rd  May, 2018 Membership No. 521860



As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

I.

(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1 1,461.35 1,295.10
(b) Capital work in progress 2 24.12 24.12
(c) Intangible Assets 3 0.08 0.19
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments 4 16,309.95 14,728.11
(ii) Loans 5 296.56 244.61
(iii) Others 6 8.05 8.05

(e) Other Non-Current Assets 7 638.76 751.96

(a) Inventories 8 551.86 504.47

(b) Financial assets
(i) Investments 9 2,100.30 2,747.18
(ii) Trade Receivables 10 248.95 208.22
(iii) Cash and Cash Equivalents 11                              162.41            556.18
(iv) Other Bank Balances 12 148.32 173.80
(v) Loans 13 200.00 200.00
(vi) Others 14 201.17 142.86

(c) Other Current Assets 15 699.22 108.20

23,051.10 21,693.05

II

(a) Equity Share Capital 16 321.32 321.32
(b) Other Equity 17 18,363.77 17,171.34

(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 18 26.40 17.81

(b) Provisions 19 69.33 85.55
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 20 401.26 484.79

(a) Financial Liabilities

(i) Borrowings 21 3,023.08 3,265.01
(ii) Trade Payables 22 140.88 83.58
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 23                 168.52              92.79

(b) Other Payables 24 448.93 125.12

(c) Provisions 25 87.61 45.74

23,051.10 21,693.05

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                      On behalf of the Board
For 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N

 Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : May 23, 2018

Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

President (F&A) & Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Directors



For the year ended
31st March, 2017

I. Revenue From Operations 26 4,735.17

II. Other income 27 2,145.58

6,880.75

IV. Expenses:

Cost of materials consumed 3,032.77

Purchases of stock in trade –

Changes in inventories of finished goods,
work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade 28 (32.91)

Employee benefits expense 29 690.16

Finance costs 30 209.99

Depreciation and amortization expense 1 & 3 149.67

Other expenses 31 1,569.22

5,618.90

1,261.85

VI. Exceptional Item –

1,261.85

VIII. Tax expense: 32

(1) Current tax (MAT Payable) 141.80

(2) Deferred tax (Including Mat credit entitlement) (86.71)

1,206.76

A (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss (23.93)

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 32 1.04

B (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss 12.79

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be
reclassified to profit or loss 32 (4.23)

(14.33)

1,192.43

Earnings per equity share (Face value of Rs. 10/- each):

- Basic 37.56

- Diluted 37.56

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                      On behalf of the Board

For 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N

 Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : May 23, 2018

Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

President (F&A) & Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Directors



Balance as at April 01, 2016 40.50 64.29 8,100.00 8,727.26 239.30
Profit for the year - - - 1,206.76 -
Other Comprehensive income - - - (23.93) 12.79
Tax adjustment on Other Comprehensive Income - - - 1.04 (4.23)

Transfer from retained earnings - - 1,000.00 (1,000.00) -

Profit for the year - - - 1,652.62 -
Other Comprehensive income - - - (27.83) (215.01)
Tax adjustment on Other Comprehensive Income - - - (3.72) 68.69

Final dividend on Equity Shares for FY 16-17 - - - (240.99) -
Dividend distributation tax on final
dividend for FY 16-17 - - - (49.06) -
Transfer from retained earnings - - 1,000.00 (1,000.00) -

1. The Board of Directors of the Company recommended dividend of Rs. 8/- per equity share (i.e. 80 %) for the year ended 31st March, 2018
on the equity shares of Rs.10/- each. This dividend is subject to approval by the shareholders at the next Annual General Meeting and
is not recognized as liability in these financial statements. The total equity dividend to be paid is Rs. 257.06 lakhs and the dividend
distribution tax thereon is Rs. 52.84 lakhs. Pursuant to the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2016, the dividend will be recorded
in the books and remitted post to the approval of the shareholders in the Annual General Meeting.

2 . Reserves & Surpluses consist as under:

(i)  – This Reserve has been created against redemption of the preference shares and can
be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

(ii)  – This Reserve represents the difference of the revalued land & building and the consideration paid for the same;

(iii)  – This Reserve has been created by appropriation from retained earnings, not being an item of other comprehensive
income. The same can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

(iv)  – This Reserve represents the cumulative profits of the Company and the effects of measurements of defined
benefit obligations. This Reserve can be utilized in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013;

(v)  – This Reserve represents cumulative gains (net of losses) on the debt
instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and the net  amounts will be reclassified to retain earnings
when these debt instruments are disposed off/redeemed.

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements
In terms of our report of even date                                    On behalf of the Board

For 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N

 Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : May 23, 2018

As at 31st March, 2017

Balance as per last financial statements 321.32

Changes in equity share capital during the year –

321.32

Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

President (F&A) & Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Directors



31st March, 2017

Profit Before Tax 1,261.85
(Profit)/Loss on sale of Assets - Net 4.93
(Profit) / Loss on sale of investment - Net (1,240.12)
Unrealised gains on investments carried at fair value
through statement of profit and loss (133.01)
Depreciation 149.67
Provision against investment & Capital Advance –
Interest Paid 209.99
Interest Received (680.42)
Dividend Received (79.07)

(506.18)
Adjustment for:
Change in Trade Payable & other Current Liabilities 456.82
Change in Inventories (47.39)
Change in Trade receivable (40.73)
Change in Short Term Borrowings (242.00)
Change in Loans & Advances (623.84)

(1,003.32)
Income Tax paid 158.27

(1,161.59)

Purchase of Investment (6,005.78)
Interest Income 680.42
Dividend Income 79.07
Purchase of Fixed Assets (332.84)
Movement in Loans & Advance 77.72
Sale of Investment 6,456.73
Sale of Fixed Assets 12.09

967.41

Interest Paid (209.99)
Proceeds from long term Borrowing 8.59
Movement in Leave Encashment 4.39
Payment of Corporate Dividend tax –
Payment of Dividend –
Movement in Gratuity (2.65)

(199.66)
(393.84)

Cash and Cash equivalents 556.18
Cash Credit from bank (145.01)

Cash and Cash equivalents 162.41
Cash Credit from bank (145.08)

The accompanying Notes are an integral part of the Financial Statements

In terms of our report of even date                                     On behalf of the Board

For 
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn No. 011393N

 Partner
Membership No. 521860

Place : Noida
Date  : May 23, 2018

Chairman & Managing Director Managing Director

President (F&A) & Vice President (Corp.)
Chief Financial Officer & Company Secretary

Directors



Amrit Corp. Limited (the Company) is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled in India and has
its Registered office in Ghaziabad, State of Uttar Pradesh, India. The Company has its primary listings on the
BSE Limited. The Company is engaged in producing & distributing of Milk Products; development/ sale of
Real Estate projects and Services.

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with all
material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under Section 133 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] and other
relevant provisions of the Act. The financial statements up to year ended March 31, 2017 were
prepared in accordance with the Accounting Standards notified under Companies (Accounting
Standard) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other relevant provisions of the Act (“Previous GAAP or
IGAAP”). The Financial statements for the financial year 2017-2018 are the first financial statement of
the Company under Ind AS. In accordance of Ind AS 101, First time Adoption of Indian Accounting
Standard the Company has given an explanation of how the transition from previous GAAP to Ind
AS has affected the Company’s financial position and financial performance (Refer Note 45).

These financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost
basis, except as disclosed in the accounting policies below:

 Certain financial assets and liabilities are measured at fair value; and

 Defined Benefit Plans - plan assets measured at fair value.

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal
operating cycle and other criteria set out in the Division II of Schedule III to the Act. Based on the
nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization
in cash and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained its operating cycle as twelve months for
the purpose of current / non-current classification of assets and liabilities.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,
assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and
actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment
loss, if any. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the
items. The cost of assets under installation or under construction also includes direct expenses
incurred till the Balance Sheet date and  is shown as capital work-in-progress.



Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of any component accounted for as a separate asset is derecognised when replaced. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss during the reporting
period in which they are incurred.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of its
property, plant and equipment recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous
GAAP and use that carrying value as the deemed cost of the property, plant and equipment.

I. Depreciation is provided on the straight line method, as per the useful life of the assets
specified in Schedule II of the Act or based on technical estimate made by the Company.

II. Where cost of a part of the asset is significant to total cost of the asset and useful life of that
part is different from the useful life of the remaining asset, useful life of that significant part is
determined separately based on technical estimate made by the Company. The significant
assets identified are depreciated separately.

III. In respect of assets added/ sold, discarded, demolished or destroyed during the year
depreciation on such assets is calculated on a pro-rata basis from the date of such additions
or as the case may be, up to the date on which such asset has been sold, discarded,
demolished or destroyed.

IV. The Company has estimated the residual value @ 5% of original cost for all assets. Estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation methods are reviewed annually, taking into
account commercial and technological obsolescence as well as normal wear and tear and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. The Management estimates the useful lives for the
assets as follows:

Administrative Building 60 years

Plant and Machinery(*) 10-20 years

Office equipment 5 years

Computer 3 years

Furniture and fixtures 10 years

Vehicles 8 years

Electric Installation 10 years

Tubewells 5 years

Server 6 years

Solar Power Plant 15 years

*Based on internal technical evaluation, the management believes that the useful lives as
given above best represent the period over which management expects to use these
assets. Hence, the useful lives for these assets are different from the useful lives as prescribed
under Part C of Schedule II of the Companies Act, 2013.



Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of brands
acquired comprises its purchase price, including any duties and other taxes (other than those
subsequently recoverable by the enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable
expenditure on their acquisition.

In the case of computer software, the cost of software purchased, comprises its purchase price,
including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the
enterprise from the taxing authorities) and any directly attributable expenditure on making the software
ready for its use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. Intangible
assets i.e. computer software is amortized over a period of 36 months subsequent to its purchase
on straight line basis.

On transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all of
intangible assets recognised as at April 1, 2016 measured as per the previous GAAP and use that
carrying value as the deemed cost of intangible assets.

The cost of intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses.

Expenditure on research is recognized as an expense when it is incurred. Development costs of
products are also charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss unless all the criteria for capitalization as
set out on Paragraph 21 and 22 of Ind AS 38 have been met by the Company.

At each balance sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying value of assets for any possible
impairment. An impairment loss is recognised when the carrying  amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is determined as higher of the asset’s fair value less
costs of disposal and value in use. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows. Assessment is done at each Balance
Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in
prior accounting period may no longer exist or may have decreased. An impairment loss is reversed
to the extent that the assets carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined if no impairment loss had previously been recognised.

(i) Finished Good

(a) Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at market value, whichever is
lower. In the case of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and
related factory overheads including depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are
apportioned on the basis of normal capacity.

(ii) Work-in-progress

(a) Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of
balance sheet.

(b) Property Development and construction-related work -in -progress is valued at cost of land
plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance sheet.



(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost. Cost is determined by using the
yearly weighted average method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases
is valued at the purchase cost using FIFO method.

Transactions in foreign currencies i.e. other than the Company’s functional currency of Indian Rupees
are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates
prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
Exchange differences on monetary items are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise except for exchange differences on transactions entered into in order to hedge certain foreign
currency risks.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

 In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

 In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants
would use while pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic
best interest. A fair value measurement of a non-financial  asset takes into account a market participant’s
ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to
another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses
valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available
to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that
is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the
basis of quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined
on the basis of net asset value as per last available audited financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value
is determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount
rate that reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is
considered to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.



For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy  by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

External valuer’s are involved for valuation of significant assets, liabilities, such as, Gratuity etc.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the
fair value hierarchy as explained above.

This note summarizes accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in
the relevant notes.

 Disclosures for valuation methods, significant estimates and assumptions - Note 41

The financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss are recognised initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are expensed through the
Statement of Profit and Loss.

For purposes of subsequent measurement, the Company classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

 those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other comprehensive
income, or through profit or loss), and

 those measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing the financial assets and
the contractual terms of the cash flows. For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will
either be recorded in Statement of Profit and Loss or other comprehensive income. For
investments in debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the investment
is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend on whether the Company has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through profit & loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three measurement
categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:

-

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent
solely payments of principal and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a
debt investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost is recognised in Statement of
Profit and Loss when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the effective interest rate method.



-

Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling  the financial assets,
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest, are measured
at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest
revenue which are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from
equity to Statement of Profit and Loss. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method.

-

Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently measured at fair
value through Profit or Loss is recognised in the Statement of  Profit and Loss in the period in
which it arises. Interest income from these financial assets is included in other income.

A financial asset is derecognised only when:

 the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset have expired, or

 the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows to one or more recipient.

Where the entity has transferred an asset, the Company evaluates whether it has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset. In such cases, the
financial asset is derecognised. Where the entity has not transferred substantially all risks
and rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

Where the entity has neither transferred a financial asset nor retains substantially all risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, the financial asset is derecognised if the company
has not retained control of the financial asset. Where the Company retains control of the
financial asset, the asset is continued to be recognised to the extent of continuing involvement
in the financial asset.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the
Company are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into
and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Financial liabilities are recognised when the Company
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. Financial liabilities are initially
measured at the amortised cost unless at initial recognition, they are classified as fair value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method. Financial liabilities carried at fair value through profit or
loss are measured at fair value with all changes in fair value recognised in the Statement of Profit
and Loss.

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract
is discharged, cancelled or expires.



These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Company prior to
the end of financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are usually unsecured. Trade and other
payables are presented as current liabilities unless payment is not due within twelve months
after the reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value.

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation as a result of past event
and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in respect
of which a reliable estimate can be made. Provisions are not discounted to their present value
and are determined based on best management estimate required to settle the obligation at
each Balance Sheet date. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and are adjusted to
reflect the current best management estimates.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will
be confirmed by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent
liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability
but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

Revenue is at the fair value of the consideration that can be reliably measured including excise
duty and net of returns, trade discounts, volume based incentives, cost of promotional programs,
GST and other indirect taxes as may be applicable, when all significant risk and rewards in the
ownership of the goods are transferred to the buyer and it is probable that the future economic
benefit will flow to the entity as per the terms of the contract, which usually co-inside with the
delivery of the goods.

Interest income from debt instruments is recognised using the effective interest rate method.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through
the expected life of the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. While
calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the expected cash flows by
considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected
credit losses.

Rental income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognised in income on
a straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.



Dividends from investments are recognized in profit or loss when the right to receive payment
is established.

All employee benefits falling due wholly within twelve months of rendering service are classified
as short term employee benefits. Benefits like salaries, wages, short term compensated
absences etc. and the expected cost of bonus, ex-gratia are recognized in the period in which
the employee renders the related service.

(i)  The State governed provident fund scheme, employee
state insurance scheme and employee pension scheme under the PF Act are defined
contribution plans. The contribution paid/payable under the schemes is recognized during
the period in which the employee renders the related service.

(ii)  Defined benefit plans of the company comprise employee’s
gratuity fund schemes managed by a Trust/SBI Life and Employees Provident Fund for
senior employees managed by the Trust. The Provident Fund Trust set up by the company
is treated as defined benefit plan since the minimum interest payable by the Provident
Fund Trust to the beneficiaries is notified every year by the Government and the company
has an obligation to make good the shortfall, if any, between the return on respective
investments of the Trust and the notified interest rate. Accordingly, the contribution paid or
payable and the interest shortfall, if any, is recognized as an expense in the period in which
the services are rendered by the employee.

Wherever applicable, the present value of the obligation under such defined benefit plans
is determined based on actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, which
recognizes each period of service as giving rise to additional unit of employee benefit
entitlement and measures each unit separately to build up the final obligation.

The obligation is measured at the present value of the estimated future cash flows. The
discount rates used for determining the present value of the obligation under defined benefit
plans, is based on the market yields on Government securities as at the Balance Sheet
date, having maturity periods approximating to the terms of related obligations.

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans, comprising of actuarial gains or losses are
recognised immediately in balance sheet with corresponding debit or credit to other
comprehensive income. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
period.

In case of funded plans, the fair value of the plan assets is reduced from the gross obligation
under the defined benefit plans to recognize the obligation on net basis.

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of any defined benefit plan are recognized
when the curtailment or settlement occurs.

Entitlements to annual leave, casual leave and sick leave are recognized when they accrue to
employees. Sick leave and casual leave can be availed during the period while earned leave



can be availed or encashed once it exceeds maximum number of accumulation of leave. The
company determines the liability for such accumulated leave using the projected unit credit
method with actuarial valuation being carried out at each Balance Sheet date in the similar manner
as in the case of defined benefit plans as mentioned in (b) (ii) above.

(d) The company does not en-cash leave which has been accumulated up to specified period.
Such leaves have been classified as long term employee benefits. Such leave accumulated at
each accounting period are carried forward to the next accounting period.  Leave other than
specified leave is encashable. There are no other en-cashable short term benefits. The other
staff benefit schemes will be provided according to respective laws in respect of employees as
and when these schemes will become applicable to the company.

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the
year. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Minimum Alternate Tax (“MAT”) paid in accordance with tax laws, which gives rise to future
economic benefits in the form of adjustment of future income tax liability, is considered as an
asset if there is convincing evidence that the company will pay normal tax in future.  MAT credit
entitlement can be carried forward and utilized for a period of ten years from the year in which it
is availed. Accordingly, it is recognized as an asset in the Balance Sheet when it is probable that
the future economic benefit associated with it will flow to the company and the asset can be
measured reliably.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences of temporary
differences between the carrying values of assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases.
Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The
measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to
recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that future taxable income
will be available against which the deductible temporary differences could be utilized. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction that
affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax
assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it relates to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the deferred tax are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where deferred



tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is included in the
accounting for the business combination.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets,
which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use
or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for
their intended use or sale. Interest income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings
pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation. All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are
incurred.

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the
effects of transactions of a non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of past or future cash receipts
or payments. The cash flows from regular revenue generating, investing and financing activities of the
Company are segregated. The cash flow statement is part of   financial statements of the company.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

 the profit attributable to owners of the Company.

 by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the financial year,
adjusted for bonus elements in equity shares issued during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjust the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

 the after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

 the weighted average number of additional equity shares that would have been outstanding
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(i)

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind-AS-108, the Company’s reportable segments
include milk/milk products (i.e. manufacture and distribution of dairy milk &  milk products), real
estate & hospitality and services. The Company’s organizational structure and governance
process are designed to support effective management of multiple business segments while
retaining focus on each of them. The operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the Corporates Review Committee which is the Chief
Operating Decision Maker.



(ii)

Since the company’s activities/operations are within the country and  considering the nature of
products it deals in, the risks and returns are the same and as such, there is only one geographical
segment.

(iii)

In addition to significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments, the accounting
policies in relation to segment accounting are as under:

The revenue and expenses of segments are directly attributable to the segments.

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of
operating cash, debtors, inventories and fixed assets net of allowances and provisions
which are reported as direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all
operating liabilities and consist principally of creditors and accrued liabilities. Segment assets
do not include income tax assets and interest bearing assets. Segment liabilities do not
include interest bearing liabilities and income-tax liabilities.

Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially transferred
all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised
at the lease’s inception at the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance charges, are included
in borrowings or other financial liabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the
lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to the
group as lessee are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line
with expected general inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.
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As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Unsecured, considered good
- Others 29.00 29.00
- Related parties (refer 5A) 17.56 15.61

                    46.56                     44.61

Unsecured, considered good
- Inter Corporate Deposit (refer 5B) 250.00 200.00

250.00 200.00

296.56 244.61

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Kamal Apparels Pvt. Ltd. (Security Deposit)                                   17.56                     15.61

 19.75    17.56                     15.61

The ICDs given to others at the interest rate of 10.50% p.a. payable annually. The amount is receivable after 12
months from the date of balance sheet.

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Deposits with banks
(Pledged for bank guarantees) 8.05 8.05
(Original date of maturity of FD is more
than 12 months)

8.05 8.05



As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Unsecured, Considered Good 549.20 664.61
Less Provision for discounted value - -

- With Statutory Authority 84.37 80.43
- Deferred Rent 5.19 6.92
- Doubtful of recovery 11.66 11.66

(Including advance to statutory
authorities & other receivables)
Less: Provision (11.66) (11.66)

638.76 751.96

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

a. Raw Materials and components 183.77 174.76

b . Finished goods 86.88 54.16

c. Stock in Trade 103.92 103.92

d. Stores and spares 177.29 171.63

       551.86              504.47

*Inventories are hypothecated to Punjab National Bank aganist working capital (cash credit) borrowings.

(a) Stock of manufactured finished goods is valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. In the case
of finished goods, cost is determined by taking material, labour and related factory overheads including
depreciation and fixed production overheads, which are apportioned on the basis of normal capacity.

(a) Work in progress is valued at raw material cost plus cost directly incurred till the date of balance sheet.

(b) Property Development and construction-related work-in-progress is valued at cost of land plus cost
directly incurred till the date of balance sheet.

(iii) Raw material, stores, spares and loose tools are valued at cost, cost is determined by using the yearly
weighted average method.

(iv) Stock in trades are valued at cost or at market value, whichever is lower. The cost in such cases is valued at the
purchase cost using FIFO method.
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As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Unsecured, considered good 248.95 208.22
Unsecured, considered doubtful 73.01 73.01
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables (73.01) (73.01)

248.95 208.22

* Trade receivables are hypothecated to Punjab National Bank aganist working capital (cash credit) borrowings.

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

a. Balance with Banks
-In Current Accounts 152.01 545.09
-In Deposit Accounts (Less than 3 months) 4.50 4.50

b . Cash in hand 5.90 6.59

162.41 556.18

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

a. Earmarked balances

- Unclaimed Dividends & others 48.32 73.80

- In Deposit Accounts (refer 12A) 100.00 100.00

b . Balance with bank

- In Deposit Accounts – –
  (Original maturity period is more than
  3 months but upto 12 months)

148.32 173.80

The earmarked deposit accounts of Rs.90 lakhs- (Previous Rs. 100 lakhs)  has been lien against the Punjab National
Bank overdraft facility and Rs. 5 lakhs (Previous year nil) against margin money (for FLC) with Punjab National Bank.



As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Unsecured, considered good
- Inter Corporate Deposits (refer 13A) 200.00 200.00

- Advance for investments – –

200.00 200.00

The ICDs given to others at the interest rate of 13% p.a. payable quaterly. The amount is receivable on or before 12
months from the date of balance sheet.

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Interest Receivable 201.17 142.86

201.17 142.86

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Balances with Statutory authorities 0.59 35.37

Employee advances 1.66 2.94

Prepaid expenses 14.30 12.30

Other advances 682.67 57.59

699.22 108.20
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As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Long Term maturities of vehicle loans 22.35 8.71
(refer 18A)

Security Deposits (refer 18B) 4.05 9.10

26.40 17.81

Note:

Vehicle loan(s) are secured by hypthecation of the vehicles purchased out of the said loans. The vehicle loan has
been taken for the period of 36 months at the rate varying from 8.50% to 10% on reducing balance.

Security Deposits from the Dealers of the Company repayable upon the discontinuation of dealership carrying
interest at 7% per annum.

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Leave Encashment 69.33 85.55

69.33 85.55

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Depreciation and amortisation 168.76 152.39

Unrealised gain on securities carried at fair
value through statement of profit and loss/OCI 547.98 501.06

716.74 653.45

Unpaid Bonus 5.98 6.02

Unpaid Earned Leave 39.85 34.71

Provision for Doubtful debts 27.99 27.99

Security Deposit 0.74 0.82

74.56 69.54

642.18 583.91

240.92 99.12

401.26 484.79



As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

145.08 145.01
(Refer note 21A)

2,788.00 3,030.00
(Refer note 21B)

90.00 90.00
(Refer note 21C)

     3,023.08         3,265.01

- The working capital (cash credit) borrowings are secured by:

(i) Hypothecation of raw materials, stores, finished goods, stock-in-trade (refer note 8), book-debts
(refer note 10);

(ii) Ist charge on Current Assets ranking parri-passu with the existing chargeholders;

(iii) Second charge on the fixed assets of the company ranking parri-passu with the existing chargeholders; and

(iv) Personal guarantees of S/Shri N.K. Bajaj, A.K. Bajaj and V.K. Bajaj.

(v ) Interest Rate is 1.60% (previous year 1.65%) over Base Rate.

- The Loan against  pledge of securites  from  Kotak Mahindra Investments Ltd.,payable upon exercise put/call
options quarterly carrying  rate of interest varing  from 8.00 %  to 10.00% p.a. payable monthly.

- The Over draft against  fixed deposits (or not  more than one year term) from Punjab National Bank  at the interest
rate of 1% more on FD rate placed with bank either payable on demand or on the maturity of fixed deposit,
whichever is earlier .

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Trade Payables other than micro and small
enterprises 140.88 83.58

140.88 83.58



As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

(a) Current maturities of vehicle loans 23.44 18.90
(refer note 18)

(b) Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 0.65 0.09

(c) Unpaid Equity dividends/ redepmtion
amount/fractional payment* 48.32 73.80

(d) Payable for purchase of property - 96.11 -

168.52 92.79

* Not due for deposit to Investor Education & Protection Fund

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Statutory dues 35.35 22.26

Employees Balances & other exp. 175.80 66.00

Advances from customers & other Parties 237.11 34.99

Others 0.67 1.87

448.93 125.12

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

Amount in Lakhs

- Leave Encashment 51.18 19.43

- Gratuity 36.43 26.31

87.61 45.74

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Sale of products (refer 26A)                               4,731.29

Other operating revenues (refer 26B)                                          3.88

4,735.17



For the year
ended 31.03.2017

- Flavoured Milk 44.81
- Cream 516.94
- Milk 873.77
- Mixes 3,313.34

- Land & Building                                             -

Less: Sales Promotion Expenses                                         17.57

  4,731.29

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Sale of Scrap                                      3.88

    3.88

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Interest Income (refer 27A) 680.42

Dividend Income 79.07

Gain on sale of investments-net –

- Realised gain / (Loss) 1,240.12

- Reclassification/ realised gain through OCI –

Unrealised gains on investments carried at fair value
through statement of profit and loss 133.01

Gain on sale of fixed assets 1.57

Rent 1.01

Gain on exchange fluctuation 3.96

Sundry Credit Balance written Back 0.15

Other receipts 6.27

Provision made previous years no longer required –

   2,145.58



For the year
ended 31.03.2017

On Fixed Deposit with Banks 9.46

On Non-Convertible Debentures 276.43

On Tax Free Bonds & others 337.52

On Inter Corporate Deposits 50.46

Interest on Excise refund –

Other Investments 6.55

680.42

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

- Land & Building 103.92

- Milk 27.17

- Flavoured Milk 1.50

- Creams 8.12

- Dairy Mixes 50.09

- Less:Excise Duty (0.03)

190.77

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

(a) Salaries, Wages & Bonus 571.36

(b) Contributions to Provident Fund and other funds 73.70

(c) Staff Welfare expenses 45.10

690.16



For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Interest Expense on

- Financial liabilities 206.96

- Others 3.03

 209.99

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Consumption of Stores, Chemicals & Others (refer 31A) 400.20

Power & Fuel consumed 222.20

Rent 50.87

Rates & taxes 5.93

Repairs to Buildings 20.81

Repairs to Machineries 101.51

Freight Outward 29.72

Payment to Auditors
- Audit fee 4.04
- Tax Audit fee –
- Reim. of expenses 0.63

Payment to directors
- as sitting fees 10.18
- as travelling expenses 2.33

Advisory & Consultancy 17.56

PMS Expenses 169.68

Travelling Expenses 85.46

Sundry Balance written off 36.88

Selling Expenses 44.88

Provision against investment & Capital advance –

Loss on Exchange Rate Fluctuation –

Loss on sale of Fixed Assets (net) 6.50

Loss on Sale of Store 7.03

CSR Expenses 23.00

Other Expenses 329.81

1,569.22



For the year
ended 31.03.2017

Chemical 25.02

Packing Material 311.37

Packing Expenses 63.36

Material Consumed (RITC) 0.45

400.20

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

- Income Tax for the year (Mat Payable) 141.80

141.80

- Deferred Tax for the year 55.09

55.09

(141.80)

   55.09

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

- Remeasurement gains /(losses) on defined benefit plans 1.04

- Related to financial instruments (4.23)

(3.19)



The income tax expenses for the year can be reconciled to the accounting profits as follows:

For the year
ended 31.03.2017

1,261.85

Income tax expense calculated @ 34.608% (P.Y - 33.063%) 417.20

Effect of tax free income (136.47)

Effect of different tax rate (165.06)

Other difference (60.58)

55.09

(a) Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts
(Mandi Tax on Desi Ghee)

(b) Claim for withdrawal of Investment Allowance and other
disallowances under the Income Tax Act, 1961

- Food Unit Capex projects, namely, 125.00
Wet Scrubber for Boiler, Mango Ice
Project (Rotary Retort & Hall for Plant
& Machinery) and Ascepting Filling
Machine

- Haridwar Guest House Project 278.00

2016-17

1.99

248.61

250.60

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

(Amt.  in Lakhs)

 2016-17

(a) Investment in real estate projects, namely,
Brahma City Pvt. Ltd. and Centre Court
(For Ashiana Landcraft) 306.68

(b) ICICI Prudential Real Estate AIF-I 43.75

(c) India Wisdom Fund 750.00

(d) Zodius Technology Fund 75.00

1,175.43

(Amt.  in Lakhs)



The Company continues to have an exposure of Rs. 57.57 Lakhs on account of commodity trade done on
National Spot Exchange Ltd. (NSEL). NSEL has not been able to adhere to its payment obligations. The
Company has filed criminal complaint in Economic Offences Wing (EOW), Delhi Police through M/s Mount
Shikhar Commodities LLP ( formerly known as Mount Shikhar Commodities Pvt. Ltd.), Member – NSEL,
which has been transferred to CBI, Mumbai. NSEL and its holding company, Financial Technologies (India)
Ltd., name now changed to “63 Moons Technologies Ltd.” have been involved in litigations at various legal
and other forums, including Supreme Court of India, Bombay High Court, NCLT, CBI (EOW), SFIO etc.
Orders were passed for amalgamation of NSEL with its holding company and restraining the holding company
from selling/alienating or creating third party rights against its assets and investments, which have been challenged
at higher forums and are pending there. In view of uncertainty of recovery, the Company made provision of
Rs. 57.80 Lakhs towards the above due in the financial year 2013-2014. In the course of time, some recoveries
have been made which have been adjusted from the provision and the amount outstanding as on 31.03.2018
stands at Rs. 57.57 Lakhs.

The auditors have issued letters of confirmation in duplicate to the major parties for trade receivables/payables,
debtors, creditors & others for confirming their balances. Balance confirmations have been received from major
parties, except some parties whose outstanding are not material and some of whom are in dispute and/or
under litigation with the company.  The balances of such parties have been incorporated in the financial
statements at the value as per the books of account. The company, to the extent stated, has considered them
as good and necessary provisions have been made in respect of debtors/advances under litigation and
where recovery is considered doubtful.

The Company has taken certain commercial premises under cancellable operating lease arrangements.
The total aggregate Lease Rentals recognized as expense in the profit & loss account under cancelable
operating lease is Rs. 46.10 Lakhs & Rs. 50.87 Lakhs (including indirect taxes) for the year ended 31st March,
2018 & 31st March, 2017 respectively. There is no Lock in period of aforementioned 0perating leases as on
31st March, 2018 therefore the same are considered as cancellable operating leases and the disclosure under
non cancellable operating leases as per Ind AS – 17 is not required to be furnished.

There are no Small, Micro and Medium Enterprises to whom the Company owes dues which are outstanding
for more than 45 days during the year and as on 31st March, 2018.

(i) Enterprises over which KMP and : M/s Kamal Apparels Private Limited (KAPL)
their relatives are able to exercise : M/s Amrit Learning Ltd. (ALL)
significant influence/control : M/s Varsha Realty LLP

: M/s Amrit Banaspati Co. Pvt. Ltd. (ABCP)
: M/s Amrit Agro Industries Ltd. (AAIL)

(ii) Key Managerial Personnel (KMP) : Mr.N.K.Bajaj, Chairman & Managing Director
: Mr.A.K.Bajaj, Managing Director

(iii) Other Related Parties with whom : Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust
the Company has transactions (ACL-EPF Trust)

: Amrit Corp, Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust (ACL-Gratuity Trust)



(Amt. in Lakhs)

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

(a) Dividend Income - - - - - -

(b) Dividend Payment - - - - -

(c) Rent  paid 42.00 - - - - 42.00

(d) Expenses recovered
/ paid (net) 20.04 - - - - 20.04

(e) Expenses reimbursed 6.23 2.33 - - 8.56

(f) Remuneration of key
managerial personnel - - 58.60 - - 58.60

(g) Sitting fee paid - - 10.18 - - 10.18

(h) Contribution  made - - - - 43.45 43.45

 

(i) Security Deposits Given# 25.00 25.00

(ii) Investments in shares 813.35 813.35

(iii) Payable to EPF Trust 3.89 3.89

(iv) Payable to Gratuity Trust 36.44 36.44

# Pursuant to Ind AS 109, security deposits are recognized at present value and it is bifurcated between
security deposit (refer note 5A) and deferred rent (refer note 7).

C. The transactions with the Related Parties have been entered in the ordinary course of business and are at
arm’s length.

Based on the guiding principles given in Ind-AS-108, the Company’s reportable segments include milk/
milk products (i.e. manufacture and distribution of dairy milk & milk products), real estate & hospitality and
services. The Company’s organizational structure and governance process are designed to support
effective management of multiple business segments while retaining focus on each of them. The operat-
ing segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Corporates
Review Committee which is the Chief Operating Decision Maker.

Since the company’s activities/operations are within the country and considering the nature of products it
deals in, the risks and returns are the same and as such, there is only one geographical segment.

In addition to significant accounting policies applicable to the business segments, the accounting policies
in relation to segment accounting are as under:



Particulars Milk/Milk Products Real Estate Services Total

2016-17 2016-17 2016-17 2016-17

External sales/ Other Operating Income 4,735.17 - - 4,735.17

Other income 6.26 - 6.54 12.80

Total revenue 4,741.43 - 6.54 4,747.97

Segment results 204.24 (41.87) (785.42) (624.05)

Unallocated income (net of expenses) - 1,415.47

Interest income - 680.41

Interest expenses - (209.99)

Profit before extra- ordinary item & tax 1,261.85

Profit before tax 1,261.85

Provision for taxation 55.08

Profit after tax 1,206.76

2,668.14 103.92 18,911.06 21,683.12

Unallocated assets 1,367.98

481.66 6.51 491.38 979.55

Unallocated liabilit ies 3,386.44

Capital expenditure 231.71 101.14 332.85

Unallocated capital expenditure - -

Depreciation & amortization 113.90 35.77 149.67

Unallocated depreciation -

Non-cash expenses other than
depreciation & Amortization 0.01 43.37 43.38

Unallocated non cash expenses - - -

(Amt. in Lakhs)

The revenue and expenses of segments are directly attributable to the segments.

Segment assets include all operating assets used by a segment and consist principally of operating
cash, debtors, inventories and fixed assets net of allowances and provisions which are reported as
direct offsets in the balance sheet. Segment liabilities include all operating liabilities and consist
principally of creditors and accrued liabilities. Segment assets do not include income tax assets and
interest bearing assets. Segment liabilities do not include interest bearing liabilities and income-tax
liabilities.

Revenues from four customers of milk/milk products reporting segment represent approximately
Rs. 3,748.12 lakhs (i.e 70.20%) of the company’s total revenues.

(i) The Company makes contributions to the provident fund and employees state insurance for eligible
employees. Under these plans, the Company is required to contribute a specified percentage of payroll
costs.  The Company has recognized Rs. 55.96 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 49.47 Lakhs) as expenses in
the Statement of Profit and Loss during the year towards contribution to these funds.



Out of the total contributions made in provident fund, a sum of Rs. 19.25 Lakhs (previous year Rs. 17.15
Lakhs) is made to “Amrit Corp. Ltd. Employees Provident Fund Trust”. The members of the Provident
Fund Trust are entitled to the rate of interest declared by the Central Govt. under the Employees Provident
Fund and Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952. The shortfall, if any, is made good by the Company in the
year in which it arises. The Trustees of the PF Trust are responsible for overall governance of the plan and
to act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the relevant provisions under the laws on
the subject. The funds of the Provident Fund Trust have been invested in various securities in accordance
with the pattern of investment prescribed by the Govt. of India.

(ii) The Company provides for the gratuity and leave encashment to eligible employees under the Defined
Benefit Plans. The Gratuity Plan provides for a lump sum payment to employees upon vesting at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment. The gratuity vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service. The gratuity benefits are funded and leave encashment benefits are
unfunded in nature.

The liability arising in the Defined Benefit Plans are determined in accordance with the advice of independent
professionally qualified Actuary, using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company
makes contribution to the Amrit Corp, Ltd. Gratuity Fund Trust, the Trustees of which are responsible for
the overall governance of the plan and go act in accordance with the provisions of the Trust Deed and the
related laws on the subject.

The Trustees have appointed SBI Life Insurance Company Ltd. for managing the funds of the Trust and
making the investment in securities in accordance with the investment pattern prescribed by the Govt. of
India.

(iii) The Defined Benefit Plans expose the Company to risk of actuarial deficit, interest rate risk and salary cost
inflation risks. The investment risk may arise from volatility in asset values due to market fluctuations and
impairment of assets due to credit losses. The interest rate risk may arise as the decrease in yield will
increase the fund liability and vice-versa. Increase in salary due to adverse inflationary pressure might also
lead to higher liabilities. The Trustees regularly monitor the funding and investments of these plans and risk
mitigation system are in place to ensure that the health of the portfolio is regularly reviewed and investments
do not pose any significant risk of the impairment.

The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of
Profit & loss and the funded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for Gratuity Fund  during
2017-18

(Fig. in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Current Service Cost 15.67

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation (net) 2.10

Net Benefit Expense 17.77

Actual Return on Plan Assets 20.91

Expected Return on Plan Assets 19.38



(Amt. in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Defined Benefit Obligation (323.26)

Fair Value of Plan Assets 286.82

Plan Asset / (Liability) (36.44)

(Amt. in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 26.31

Interest Cost 2.10

Current Service Cost 15.67

Benefits Paid 2.67

Actual Losses / (Gain) on Obligation 20.19

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost —

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 36.44

(Amt. in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Opening Value of Plan Assets 242.28

Expected Return on Plan Assets 19.38

Interest Income on Plan Assets 20.91

Benefits Paid 2.67

Contribution by Employer 26.31

Actuarial Losses / (Gain) 1.52

Closing Fair Value of Plan Assets 286.82

31.03.2017

Investment with Insurer 100.00%

Bank Balance with The Trust –



31.03.2017

Discount Rate (%) 7.37

Expected Rate of Return on Plan Assets

Increase in Compensation Cost (%) 6.00

(Amt. in Lakhs)

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (5.91) 6.22

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation by
0.50% on defined benefit obligations 6.29 (6.02)

Effect of increase / decrease in withdrawal rate  by 5%
on defined benefit obligations - -

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and
the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.



(Amt  in Lakhs)

(a)

  As at April 2017    (323.26)      286.82      (36.44)

  Service cost       (17.21) — —

  Interest  expense       (23.82) — —

  Sub total included in statement of profit & loss       (41.03) —      (41.03)

(b)           9.75         (9.75) —

(c) — — —

  Return on plan assets —         23.50 —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumption — — —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumption           2.69 — —

  Experience adjustment       (20.78) — —

  Sub total included in OCI       (18.09)         23.50          5.41

(d) —         36.44        36.44

(e)    (372.63)      337.01      (35.62)

(Amt  in Lakhs)

(a)

  As at April 2016 (268.58) 242.28 (26.30)

Service cost (15.67) — —

  Interest expense (21.49) — —

  Sub total included in statement of profit & loss (37.16) — (37.16)

(b)           2.67         (2.67) —

(c) — — —

  Return on plan assets —         20.90 —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in demographic assumption — — —

  Actuarial changes arising from changes in financial assumption         (7.40) — —

  Experience adjustment       (12.79) — —

  Sub total included in OCI       (20.19)         20.90 0.71

(d) —         26.31 26.31

(e)    (323.26)      286.82 (36.44)



The following table summarizes the components of net benefit expenses recognized in the statement of Profit &
loss and the unfunded status and the amount recognized in Balance Sheet for leave encashment  during 2017-18

(Amt  in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Current Service Cost 7.19

Interest Cost on Benefit Obligation 8.40

Net Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss recognized in the year 11.14

Net Benefit Expense 26.73

Actual Return on Plan Assets —

(Amt  in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Present value of the obligation at end 120.52

Unfunded liability/ Provision in Balance Sheet (120.52)

(Amt  in Lakhs)

31.03.2017

Opening Defined Benefit Obligation 104.99

Net Interest Cost/ (Income) 8.40

Total  Service Cost 7.19

Benefits Paid (11.20)

Re- Measurements 11.14

Acquisitions (Credit) / Cost —

Closing Defined Benefit Obligation 120.52

31.03.2017

Discount Rate 7.37

Increase in Compensation Cost 6.00



(Amt  in Lakhs)

Effect of increase / decrease in discount rate by 0.50%
on defined benefit obligations (3.64) 1.84

Effect of increase / decrease in salary escalation
by 0.50% on defined benefit obligations 1.87 (3.69)

The Sensitivity Analysis above has been determined based on reasonably possible change of the respective
assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. These
sensitivities show the hypothetical impact of a change in each of the listed assumptions in isolation. While each of
these sensitivities holds all other assumptions constant, in practice such assumptions rarely change in isolation and
the asset value changes may offset the impact to some extent.

The Company’s capital management objective is to ensure that a sound capital base is maintained to
support long term business growth and optimize shareholders value. Capital includes equity share
capital and other equity reserves. The Company’s operations are funded primarily through internal accruals.
Return to shareholders through dividend is monitored as per the laid down dividend distribution policy.



(Amt  in Lakhs)

As at As at
31st March, 2017 1st April, 2016

 

  (i) Investments 4 6,476.12 5,859.88

  (ii) Trade receivables 10           248.95      208.22

  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents 11           162.41      556.18

  (iv) Other Bank Balances 12           148.32      173.80

  (v ) Loans 5 & 13           479.00      429.00

  (vi) Others 7 & 14           209.22      150.93

7,724.02 7,378.01

(i)    Investments 4           1,713.79     1,526.00

          1,713.79     1,526.00

(i)    Investments 4 & 9         10,220.34     10,089.40

(ii)   Loans 5                         17.56             15.61

        10,237.90     10,105.01

19,675.71 19,009.02

  (i)   Borrowings 18 & 21             3,049.48       3,282.82

  (ii)  Trade payables 22                     140.88             83.58

  (iii) Other financial liabilities 23                       168.52             92.79

3,358.88       3,459.19



As at As at
31st March 2017 1st April 2016

     
The carrying amount of financial assets and
financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are
a reasonable approximation of their fair values
except Investments for which the fair value are
as follows:      
Fair value of Investments measured at amortised 6,476.12 5,859.88

  cost (Level 1)      

     
  Investment in Equity Shares, Mutual Funds (Level 1) 8,987.35 9,661.00

  Investment in Equity Shares, Alternative
Investment Funds (Equity), (Level 2)            948.82           141.78

  Investment in Alternative Investment Funds (Debt),
Loans  (Level 3)                  301.73           302.23

Investment in Preference Shares, Alternative
Investment Funds (Real Estate), (Level 2)               1,713.79       1,526.00

The Company determines the fair value of its financial instruments on the basis of the following hierarchy:

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments that are quoted in active markets are determined on the basis of
quoted price for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market are determined on the basis
of net asset value as per last available audited financial statements.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the fair value is
determined using discounted cash flow method with the most significant inputs being the discount rate that
reflects the credit risk of the counter-party.

The fair value of trade receivables, trade payables and other current financial assets and liabilities is considered
to be equal to the carrying amounts of these items due to their short-term nature.

Liquidity risk refers to risk that the Company may encounter difficulties in meeting its obligations associated
with financial liabilities that are settled in cash or other financial assets. The Company regularly monitors the
rolling forecasts to ensure that sufficient liquidity is maintained on an ongoing basis to meet operational
needs. The Company manages the liquidity risk by planning the investments in a manner such that the
desired quantum of funds could be made available to meet any of the business requirements within a
reasonable period of time. In addition, the Company also maintains flexibility in arranging the funds by
maintaining committed credit lines with bank(s) to meet the obligations.



Credit risk refers to risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or a counter-party fails to meet its
contractual obligations. The Company has following categories of financial assets that are subject to credit
risk evaluation.

The Company has made investments in tax free long term bonds, short term bonds, deposit with banks,
mutual funds etc. Funds are invested in accordance with the Company’s established Investment policy
that includes parameters of safety, liquidity and post tax returns. Company avoids the concentration of
credit risk by spreading them over several counterparties with good credit rating profile and sound financial
position. The Company’s exposure and credit ratings of its counterparties are monitored on an ongoing
basis. Based on historical experience and credit profiles of counterparties, the company does not expect
any significant risk of default except as provided in the financial statements.

Credit risk arising from trade receivables is managed in accordance with the Company’s established
policy with regard to credit limits, control and approval procedures. The Company provides for expected
credit losses on trade receivables based on a simplified approach as per Ind AS 109. The Company’s
historical experience of collecting receivable indicate that credit risk is low, consequently trade receivables
are considered to be a single class of financial assets. All overdue customer balances are evaluated taking
into account the age of the dues, track record of the counter party etc. Loss allowances and impairment is
recognized where considered appropriate by the management.

Other financial assets include employee loans, security deposits etc. Based on historical experience and
credit profiles of counterparties, the Company does not expect any significant risk of default.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for each of the above categories of financial assets is
their carrying values as at the reporting dates.

Interest rate risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company is not exposed to any significant interest rate
risk as its investments are primarily in fixed debt instruments. Also, there are no significant borrowings as
at the balance sheet date.

Price risk refers to risk that the fair value of a financial instrument may fluctuate because of the change in the
market price. The Company is exposed to the price risk mainly from investment in mutual funds and
investment in equity instruments. Investments in mutual funds are made primarily in units of fixed maturity
and liquid funds and are not exposed to significant price risk.

Foreign currency risk refers to risk that the fair value of future cash flows of an exposure may fluctuate due
to change in the foreign exchange rates. The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk arising out of



transactions in foreign currency. Foreign exchange risks are managed in accordance with Company’s
established policy for foreign exchange management. The impact of strengthening/weakening of foreign
currencies on the outstanding exposure at the year-end is not significant.

2016-17

Profit after taxation as per Statement of profit & loss (Rs. in Lakhs) 1,206.76

Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding 32,13,231

Basic and diluted earnings per share in rupee (face value – Rs.10/-
per share) including exceptional income 37.56

(Amt. in Lakhs)

2016-17

Capital Goods 74.03
Spares 11.47
Others 3.84

Exports of goods calculated on F.O.B basis; Nil
Royalty, know-how, professional and Nil
Consultation fees; Nil
Interest and Dividend; Nil
Other income, indicating the nature thereof; Nil

Travelling 17.17
Finance Cost 0.55
Others 2.26

The previous year’s figures have been regrouped/re-arranged, wherever necessary, to make them comparable
with the figures for the current year.

.

These are the Company’s first financial statements prepared in accordance with Ind AS.

The accounting policies set out in Note 1 have been applied in preparing the financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2018, the comparative information presented in these financial statements for the
year ended March 31, 2017 and in the preparation of an opening Ind AS balance sheet at April 1, 2016
(the Company’s date of transition). In preparing its opening Ind AS balance sheet, the Company has
adjusted the amounts reported previously in financial statements prepared in accordance with the accounting
standards notified under Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2006 (as amended) and other



relevant provisions of the Act (“previous GAAP or IGAAP”). An explanation of how the transition from
IGAAP to Ind AS has affected the Company’s financial position, financial performance and cash flows is
set out in the following tables and notes.

Ind AS 101 requires an entity to reconcile equity, total comprehensive income and cash flows for prior
periods. The following tables represent the reconciliations from IGAAP to Ind AS. The presentation
requirements under IGAAP differs from Ind AS and hence the IGAAP information has been reclassified
for ease of reconciliation with Ind AS. The reclassified IGAAP information is derived based on the audited
financial statements of the Company for the year ended April 1, 2016 and March 31, 2017.

(Amt. in Lakhs)

 
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 1,295.10 - 1,295.10 1,461.35 - 1,461.35
(b) Capital work in progress 24.12 - 24.12 24.12 - 24.12
(c) Intangible assets 0.19 - 0.19 0.08                              - 0.08
(d) Financial Assets

(i) Investments iv (b) 13,586.55 1,141.56 14,728.11 14,952.33 1,357.62 16,309.95
  (ii) Loans iv (e) 254.00 (9.39) 244.61 304.00 (7.44) 296.56
  (iii) Others   8.05                             - 8.05 8.05                              - 8.05
(e) Other non-current assets  iv (e) 745.05 6.91 751.96 633.57 5.19 638.76

(a) Inventories   504.47                             - 504.47 551.86                              - 551.86
(b) Financial Assets          

(i) Investments iv (c) 2,373.26 373.92 2747.18 1,800.54 299.76 2,100.30
(ii) Trade receivables   208.22                             - 208.22 248.95                              - 248.95

  (iii) Cash and cash equivalents   556.18                             - 556.18 162.41                              - 162.41
  (iv) Other Bank Balances   173.80                             - 173.80 148.32                              - 148.32
  (v) Loans   200.00                             - 200.00 200.00                              - 200.00
  (vi) Other   142.86                             - 142.86 201.17                              - 201.17
(c) Other Current Assets   108.20                             - 108.20 699.22                              - 699.22

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital   321.32                             - 321.32 321.32                              - 321.32
(b) Other Equity  iv (i) 16,158.59 1,012.75 17,171.34          17,255.88             1,107.89          18,363.77

Liabilities
Non-current liabilities

(a) Financial Liabilities          
  (i) Borrowings   17.81                             - 17.81 26.40                              - 26.40
(b) Provisions   85.55                             - 85.55 69.33                              - 69.33
(c ) Deferred tax liabilities (Net)  iv (g) (15.46) 500.25 484.79 (145.98) 547.24 401.26
Current liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities          
  (i) Borrowings   3,265.01                             - 3,265.01 3,023.08                              - 3,023.08
  (ii) Trade payables   83.58                             - 83.58 140.88                              - 140.88
  (iii) Other financial liabilities   92.79                             - 92.79 168.52                              - 168.52
(b) Other Payables   125.12                             - 125.12 448.93                              - 448.93
(c) Provisions   45.74                             - 45.74 87.61                              - 87.61

 

* IGAAP figures have been regrouped/ reclassified wherever necessary to conform to the requirements prescribed under Division II of Schedule III to the Companies
Act, 2013



(Amt. in Lakhs)

Revenue From Operations iv (f) & iv (h) 4,748.46 (13.29) 4,735.17

Other income iv (b) & iv (c) 2,014.48 131.10 2,145.58

6,762.94 117.81  6,880.75

Cost of materials consumed 3,032.77  - 3,032.77

Purchases of stock in trade  -  -  -

Changes in inventories of finished goods work-in-progress and Stock-in-Trade (32.91)  - (32.91)

Employee benefits expense iv (d) 714.10 (23.94) 690.16

Finance costs 209.99  - 209.99

Depreciation and amortization expense 149.67  - 149.67

Other expenses iv (e), iv (h) &  iv (f) 1,580.75 (11.53) 1,569.22

5,654.37 (35.47) 5,618.90

Exceptional Item  -  -  -

Current tax (MAT payable) 141.80  - 141.80

Deferred tax iv (g) (130.52) 43.81 (86.71)

(A) Re-measurement gains/(loss) on defined benefit plans iv (d)  - (23.93) (23.93)

Income tax effect on (A) iv (g)  - 1.04 1.04

(B)  Gain /(loss) on investments iv (b)  - 12.79 12.79

Income tax effect  (B) iv (g)  - (4.23) (4.23)

(iii) Ind AS 101 mandates certain exceptions and allows first-time adopters certain exemptions from the
retrospective application of certain requirements under Ind AS. The Company has applied the following
exemptions in the financial statements:

a.  Ind AS 103 (Business Combinations) has not been applied retrospectively to business combinations
that occurred prior to 1st April, 2016. Use of this exemption means that in the opening Balance Sheet,
goodwill and other assets and liabilities acquired in previous business combinations remain at the previous
GAAP carrying values.

b. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets were carried in the Balance  Sheet prepared in
accordance with previous GAAP on 31st March, 2016. Under Ind AS, the Company has elected to
regard such carrying values as deemed cost at the date of transition.

c. Under previous GAAP, investment in subsidiaries and associates were stated at cost and provisions
made to recognise the decline, other than temporary. Under Ind AS, the Company has considered their
previous GAAP carrying amount as their deemed cost.



(iv) In addition to the above, the principal adjustments made by the Company in restating its previous GAAP
financial statements, including the Balance Sheet as at 1st April, 2016 and the financial statements as at and for
the year ended 31st March, 2017 are detailed below:

a. Under previous GAAP, dividend payable on equity shares (including the tax thereon) was recognised as
a liability in the period to which it relates. Under Ind AS, dividends (including the tax thereon) to shareholders
are recognised when declared by the members in a general meeting.

b. Under previous GAAP, non-current investments were stated at cost. Where applicable, provision was
made to recognise a decline, other than temporary, in valuation of such investments. Under Ind AS, equity
instruments [other than investment in subsidiaries and associates], mutual funds and alternative investment
funds (equity) have been classified as Fair Value through profit or loss (FVTPL).

Investment in PSU bonds (Tax free), non-convertible debentures and alternative investment funds
(debt) classified as non-current under previous GAAP and carried at cost as on 31st March, 2017, through
Profit or Loss (FVTPL).

Investment in preference shares and alternative investment funds (real estate) classified as non-current
under previous GAAP have been classified at fair value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVTOCI).

c. Under previous GAAP, current investments were stated at lower of cost and fair value. Under Ind AS,
these financial assets have been classified as Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVTPL) on the date of
transition and fair value changes after the date of transition has been recognised in profit or loss

d. Under previous GAAP, actuarial gains and losses related to the defined benefit schemes for gratuity and
liabilities towards employee leave encashment were recognised in profit or loss. Under Ind AS, the
actuarial gains and losses form part of remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability/asset which is
recognised in OCI. Consequently, the tax effect of the same has also been recognised in OCI instead of
profit or loss.

e. Under the IGAAP, interest free security deposits (that are refundable in cash on completion of the lease
term) are recorded at their transaction value. Under Ind AS, all financial assets are required to be recognized
at fair value. Accordingly, the Company has fair valued these security deposits under Ind AS. Difference
between the fair value and transaction value of the security deposit has been recognized as deferred
expenses.

f. Under the IGAAP, revenue from sale of products was presented exclusive of excise duty. Under Ind AS,
revenue from sale of goods is presented inclusive of excise duty. The excise duty paid is presented
under “Other expense” head of the Statement of Profit and Loss as part of expense. This change has
resulted in increase in total revenue and total expenses. There is no impact on retained earnings.

g. Under Ind AS deferred tax has been recognized on the adjustments made on transition to Ind AS.

h. Under Ind AS sales related expenses are to be reduced from Revenue from sale of products to record
revenue on net basis. There is no impact on retained earnings.

i. Retained earnings as at April 1, 2016 has been adjusted consequent to the above Ind AS transition
adjustments.
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